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A year ago, Amreli Steels made a promise
to the public - a promise of prosperity and
progress. Today, we are on the way to
realizing this promise as we aim for the
skies and take your dreams with us.
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We are committed to setup integrated steel
manufacturing facilities, value-added services and
other diversified businesses with the employment of
best human resources and systems implementation.
We aim to achieve a high profitable growth rate,
create value for our shareholders and customers,
and to look after the well-being of our employees
and their families.

Amreli Steels Limited exists to carry forward its
legacy in maintaining its dominant position in trade
and industry by being socially compliant and
contributing to the well-being of shareholders and
employees.
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Loyal to the nation

Loyalty is not a flower that blooms only when the sun
shines. Loyalty is like a dependable shade of an aged tree.
For over five decades, our loyalty to the nation has
remained undeterred despite economic instability and
volatility in the global steel trade.
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Entwined for success

Last year, you joined us in our journey of growth and
expansion. The toil continues day and night to ensure that
your dreams and our new state-of-the-art plant see the
light of day as planned.
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The lock of dreams

While numbers matter, it is the trust of our
shareholders and employees that matter the most.
Our continued market leadership is a testimony to our
commitment of never letting the nation down.
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Board of Directors

Mr. Abbas Akberali
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer

Mr. Shayan Akberali
Managing Director

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji
Independent Director

Mr. Badar Kazmi
Independent Director

Mr Mirza Qamar Beg*
Independent Director

Ms. Kinza Shayan
Non-Executive Director

Ms. Mariam Akberali
Non-Executive Director

Audit Committee

Mr. Badar Kazmi
Chairman

Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg
Member

Ms. Kinza Shayan
Member

Human Resource &
Remuneration Committee

Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji
Chairman

Mr. Badar Kazmi
Member

Mr. Shayan Akberali
Member

Ms. Mariam Akberali
Member

Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Fazal Ahmed

Company Secretary
Mr. Adnan Abdul Ghaffar

Head of Internal Audit
Mr. Fraz Ahmed

COMPANY INFORMATION

Registered Office

A-18, S.I.T.E, Karachi, Pakistan
UAN: 92-21-111-267-354

Tel: 92-21-32587232-9

Fax: 92-21-32587240, 38798328
E-mail: info@amrelisteels.com

Rolling Mill & Melt Shop

Rolling Mill

D-89, Shershah Road,
Karachi, Pakistan

Tel: 92-68-5786420-9
Fax:92-21-32587240

Steel Melt Shop

Industrial Land, Deh Gharo, Tapo
Gharo

Taluka Mirpur Sakro

(Distt: Thatta), Sindh, Pakistan
Tel: 92-723-661500-09

Fax: 92-723-661462

Auditors

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants
Progressive Plaza, Beaumont
Road,

Karachi, Pakistan

Shares Registrar

THK Associates (Pvt) Limited
2nd Floor, State Life Building - 03
Dr Ziauddin Ahmed Road
Karachi - 75530

UAN: 92-21-111-000-322

Tel: 92-21-35693094-95

Fax: 92-21-35655595

Internal Auditors

BDO Ebrahim & Co.
Chartered Accountants

2nd Floor, Block-C,

Lakson Square,Building No. 1,
Sarwar Shaheed Road,
Karachi — 74200, Pakistan
Tel: 92-21-35683030

Fax: 92-21-35684239

Bankers

Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited
Askari Bank Limited

Bank Al Habib Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited
Habib Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited
JS Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

NIB Bank Limited

Silk Bank Limited

Soneri Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan)
Limited

Summit Bank Limited

The Bank of Khyber

The Bank of Punjab

United Bank Limited

Legal Adivsor

Mr. Shamim Javaid Shamsi
A-102, Samina Avenue, Shadman
No.2

North Karachi, Karachi

Website Information
www.amrelisteels.com

Karachi Stock Exchange
ASTL

* Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg has resigned from the Board of Directors.
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Board Of Directors
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Mr. Abbas Akberali founded
Amreli Steels in 1972 and since
then has led the company to
become the largest and most
well-known steel bar
manufacturer in Pakistan.

Mr. Abbas Akberali brings
unparalleled experience with a
metallurgical engineering
background combined with an
MBA from Columbia University,
NY. He has also held leadership
roles in the cement, ship
breaking and metal recycling
industries. Mr. Abbas has played
an influential role in driving
reforms and policy aimed
towards making Pakistan’s steel
industry more competitive and
sustainable. With a passion for
educating Pakistan, Mr. Abbas
Akberali is also a founding
member of The Hunar
Foundation and serves on the
board of other notable non-profit
organizations.

Chairman &
Chief Executive Officer

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Shayan Akberali joined Amreli
Steels in 2002 after completing a
Bachelor’s Degree in Electrical
Engineering from Northwestern
University, USA and working for
Lehman Brothers, NY. Over the
past decade, Mr. Shayan has
played an integral role in
expanding and professionalizing
the company in his various roles
overseeing production, technical
development and planning. Mr.
Shayan was instrumental in
expanding production capacity
from 60,000 tons/year to 180,000
tons/year and is leading the
current expansion project to
double capacity. Responsible for
various company functions in his
role as MD, Mr. Shayan has built
a strong team of professionals
that bring functional expertise as
well as leadership to steer the
company to higher growth.

Managing Director

Mr. Badar Kazmi brings with
him a wealth of experience
spanning over 33 years
including almost all facets of
the banking industry in
Pakistan, Middle East, South
Asia and Africa. Mr. Kazmi
started his career with BCCl in
1980 and worked for 11 years
in Pakistan and the Middle
Eastern Region.

Mr. Kazmi joined Standard
Chartered Group (SCB) in
1991 and held various
positions including Regional
Head of Global Markets for
MESA (Middle East and South
Asia) and Africa. In 2003, he
was appointed as CEO of SCB
Pakistan, a position he held till
late 2010. In recognition for his
services to banking in
Pakistan, Mr. Kazmi was also
distinguished with the civil
award ‘Sitara-e-Imtiaz’ by the
President of Pakistan.

Independent Director

Annual Report 2016




Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji started
his career in 1971 after
completing an MBA from IBA
Karachi. Since then, he has
spent 35 years with
multinationals like Exxon
Corp, Union Carbide of USA,
British American Tobacco/
Pakistan Tobacco and
Interloop. Mr. Taji is also a
Certified Corporate
Governance professional from
IFC/PICG. Presently he is a
Special Advisor to Directors of
Sapphire Fibers. He has the
honor of being member of
Prime Minister Pay and
Pension Commission, Advisor
to NAB for developing /
implementing its Change
Management Program,
Advisor to Pakistan Air and the
HR Advisor to PCB for a
number of years. He also has
been Dean of Riphah
University and Director
General of NUST Business
School.

Independent Director

Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg
is a retired civil
servant who has
served, interalia, as
Secretary
Commerce, Chief
Secretary
Baluchistan, and
Chairman and CEO
of Pakistan Steel. He
also served for six
years, until 25th May
2015, on the Board of
State Bank of
Pakistan. He has
also served on the
Board of National
School of Public
Policy, and is a
member of Tax
Reforms Commission
and Broadening of
Tax Base Committee.
He is recipient of one
of the highest civil
awards of Italy.

Independent Director

Ms. Kinza Shayan
is a graduate in
Management
Sciences from
SZABIST and is
currently pursuing
a diploma in sports
nutrition. She also
writes for various
publications on
fitness and nutrition
while gearing up to
start her own
business in the
health sciences
field.

Non-Executive Director
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Ms. Mariam
Akberali brings
great diversity to
the board with
experience in the
food, restaurant,
mental health, and
education sectors
in Pakistan. She
has earned a
degree in
Psychology from
Franklin & Marshall
College, USA and
is passionate about
social
entrepreneurship in
Pakistan.

Non-Executive Director
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Notice of 32

Annual General Meeting
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NOTICE OF THE 32N> ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 324 Annual General Meeting of Amreli Steels Limited will be held on Tuesday,
October 25, 2016 at 9:00 am at Auditorium Hall of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP),
G-13, Block-8, Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi, Pakistan, to transact the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1.

To confirm the minutes of last (315) Annual General Meeting of the Company held on October 27,
2015.

To receive, consider and adopt annual audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2016 together with the Directors’ and the Auditors’ Reports thereon.

To consider and if thought fit, declare final cash dividend of 20% i.e. PKR 2.00 per share, as recommended
by the Board of Directors of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2016.

To appoint auditors of the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2017 and to fix their
remuneration. The Board of Directors of the Company has recommended the name of retiring auditors
M/s. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants, for their appointment as external auditors for the year
ending June 30, 2017. The retiring auditors, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
appointment for the year ending June 30, 2017.

Special Business:

5.

To authorize the Company to transmit quarterly accounts by placing the same on the Company’s
website instead of circulating by post to the members, through passing the following ordinary
resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan’s (SECP)
Circular 19 of 2004 dated April 14, 2004 (the Circular), the Company be and is hereby authorized to
transmit the Quarterly and Half-Yearly Financial Statements of the Company by placing the same on
the website of Amreli Steels Limited, instead of sending the same by post to the members, subject to
approval of the SECP and fulfillment of the conditions contained in the said Circular.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all
necessary acts, deeds and things in connection therewith and ancillary thereto as may be required or
expedient to give effect to the spirit and intent of the above resolution.”

To consider and, if deem fit, to pass with or without any amendment/ modification following resolution
as ordinary resolution, to obtain consent from the members for the transmission of annual audited
accounts in electronic form.

“RESOLVED that the company be and is hereby authorized to circulate Annual audited accounts to
the Members either through CD/DVD/USB at their registered address, subject to compliance with
notification (SRO No. 470(1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016) issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all
necessary acts, deeds and things in connection therewith and ancillary thereto as may be required or
expedient to give effect to the spirit and intent of the above resolution.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to adopt alteration in Articles of Association of the Company to give
effect to the Companies E-Voting Regulations, 2016, by passing the following resolutions as Special
Resolutions with or without amendment/modification.
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“RESOLVED THAT the Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered by inserting
three new Atrticles 61A, 61B and 61C and the inserted articles will appear in Articles of Association of
the Company as under -

61A. The Notice of every general meeting shall clearly specify that member can also exercise their
right to vote through e-voting by giving his consent in writing in accordance with the Companies (E-
Voting) Regulations, 2016 [E-Voting Regulations].

61B. If the Company receives requests for electronic voting, in such manner as prescribed in sub-
regulation (4) of regulation (6) of the E-Voting Regulations, the Company shall follow the procedures
laid down in the E-Voting Regulations.

61C. For the purpose of electronic voting, the members are allowed to appoint member as well as
non-member as proxy, only in pursuant to Article 61C of the Articles of Association of the Company.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorized to do all
necessary acts, deeds and things in connection therewith and ancillary thereto as may be required or
expedient to give effect to the spirit and intent of the above resolution.”

Any Other Business:

8. To transact any other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the
Chairman.

Annexed to this Notice of the meeting being sent to members is a statement under Section 160(1)(b)
of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 setting forth all material facts concerning the special business to
be considered in the meeting.

Date: October 03, 2016 By Order of the Board
Place: Karachi

Adnan Abdul Ghaffar
Company Secretary

Notes:
1. Book Closure:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 15, 2016 to October 25, 2016
(both days inclusive). Transfers received in order by our Share Registrar, THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited,
2" Floor, State Building No. 3, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi by the close of business on October 14,
2016 will be considered in time for the determination of any entitlement, as recommended by the Board of
Directors and attending the meeting.

2. Appointment of Proxies and Attending AGM:

I. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy who

shall have such rights as respects attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to a
member.

Il. A blank instrument of proxy applicable for the meeting is being provided with the notice sent to
members. Further copies of the instrument of proxy may be obtained from the registered office of the
Company during normal office hours.

M. A duly completed instrument of proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any), under which
it is signed or a notarized certified copy of such power or authority must, to be valid, be deposited at
the registered office not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. Attested copies of valid CNIC
or the passport of the member and the Proxy shall be furnished with the Proxy Form.
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V. The instrument of proxy should be duly signed, stamped and witnessed by two persons with their
names, address, CNIC numbers and signatures.

V. CDC account holders are also required to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular No.1 dated
January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

For Attending the Annual General Meeting:

In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person, whose securities
are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall
authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC)
or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

Members registered on Central Depository Company (CDC) are also requested to bring their
particulars, I.D. numbers and account numbers in CDS.

In case of a corporate entity the Board of Directors' resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of
meeting.

For Appointment of Proxies:

In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit
the proxy form as per requirement notified by the company.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

Corporate entities shall submit the Board of Directors resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen
signature along with proxy form.

3. Change in Members Addresses:

Members are requested to notify any changes in their addresses immediately to the Share Registrar M/s.
THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited.

4. Submission of Copies of Valid CNICs (mandatory):

SECP vide SRO No. 831(1)/2012 dated July 05, 2012 directed the companies to issue dividend warrant
crossed as “A/c Payee only” which should also bear the Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) of the
registered member. Members, who have not yet submitted attested photocopy of their valid CNIC along
with folio number are requested to send the same, at the earliest, directly to the Company’s Share Registrar.
In case of non-availability of valid copy of CNIC of any member, in the Company’s records, the Company
may withhold the Dividend Payment, which will be released only upon providing the copy.

5. Dividend Mandate Option / E-Dividend Facility:

In pursuance to the directions given by SECP vide Circular No. 8(4)SM/CDC 2008 dated April 5, 2013 the
members may authorize the Company to directly credit in their bank account the dividend declared in the
annual general meeting of the Company.
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Dividend Mandate Forms are available at the Registered Office of the Company. Members are encouraged
to provide, duly filled in dividend mandate form, to receive the cash dividend declared by the Company, if
any, directly into their bank account through e-Dividend payment mechanism, as advised by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its aforesaid communication dated April 05, 2013.

The members who wish to avail e-Dividend payment facility shall not receive the dividend warrant.
Members not providing dividend mandate shall continue to be paid through the dividend warrants.

The members who hold shares in physical form are requested to submit the dividend mandate form duly
filled to the Share Registrar.

The members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to submit the dividend mandate form
duly filled to their participant/investor account services in the CDC.

6. Updating NTN with respective participants/ Share Registrar:

The corporate members having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN)
updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate members who have physical shares should
send a copy of their NTN certificate to our Share Registrar. The members while sending NTN or NTN
certificates, as the case may be, must quote the company name and their respective folio numbers.

7. Deduction of Income Tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001:

a) Pursuant to the Finance Act, 2016, effective July 01, 2016, the rate of deduction of income tax under
Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, from payment of dividend to a NON-FILER of income
tax return is prescribed as 20% and for FILER of Tax Returns as 12.5%. List of Filers is available at
Federal Board of Revenue’s (FBR) website: http://www.fbr.gov.pk. Members are therefore advised to
update their tax FILER status latest by October 14, 2016.

b) Further, according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), with-holding tax will
be determined separately on ‘Filer/Non-Filer’ status of Principal shareholder as well as joint-holder(s)
based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts.

In this regard all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding
proportions of Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share
Registrar, in writing as follows:

Principal Shareholders Joint Holder (s)
; Total Shareholding Shareholding
F%I}g/ﬁtl))C number Name and Proportion Name and Proportion
" | of shares | CNIC No. (No. of CNIC No. (No. of
Shares) Shares)

¢) The required information must reach our Share Registrar by the close of business on October 14, 2016;
otherwise it will be assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint
Holder(s).

d) The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Number
(NTN) updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send
a copy of their NTN certificate to the company or Share Registrar. The shareholders while sending NTN
or NTN certificates, as the case may be, must quote company name and their respective folio numbers.

e) The information received within the above specified time would enable the Company to deduct income
tax at the applicable rates from the payment of dividend if announced by the Company on October 25,
2016.

17
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f) Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or deduction at a reduced rate under the
relevant provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, are requested to submit a valid tax certificate
or necessary documentary evidence, as the case may be, latest by October 14, 2016.

8. Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on the Website:

The Annual Report of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2016 has been placed on the Company’s
website.

9. Electronic Transmission of Financial Statements and Notice of Meeting:

Members are hereby informed that in pursuant to SECP's S.R.O. 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014
regarding electronic transmission of Annual Report and notice which falls in the ambit of sections 50, 158
and 233 of the Companies Ordinance 1984, we have uploaded the request form for the purpose on
Company’s website. Members who desire to receive annual financial statements and notice of meeting for
the financial year ending June 30, 2017 or onward through e-mail, instead of registered post/courier, are
requested to submit their consent on the form duly filled to the Share Registrar of the Company.

10. Consent for Video Conference Facility:

Pursuant to SECP Circular No 10 of 2014 dated May 21, 2014, if company receives consent from members
holding aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in geographical location to participate in the meeting
through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of the general meeting. The Company will
arrange video conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. To avail this
facility please provide following information and submit to the Shares Registrar Office:

Consent for Video Conferencing Facility at the AGM

I/We, of being a member of Amreli Steels Limited holder of Ordinary Share(s) as per Registered Folio
No. hereby opt for video conference facility at to attend the Annual
General Meeting to be held on October 25, 2016

Signature of member

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conferencing facility at least 5 days before
the date of general meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such
facility.

For any query/problem/information, members may contact our Share Registrar at the following address -

THK Associates (Pvt) Ltd

2nd Floor,State Life Building No. 3
Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road

Karachi 75530

UAN No: (021) 111-000-322
Direct No: 021-35693094-95
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 160(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE,
1984 REGARDING SPECIAL BUSINESS

Item 5: Placement of Quarterly Financial Statements on the Company’s Website

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide Circular 19 of 2004 has allowed listed companies
to place the quarterly /half yearly accounts on the website of the Company instead of sending the same to the
members by post subject to fulfillment of certain conditions. The Board has recommended the placement of
quarterly / half yearly accounts on the website of the Company, www.amrelisteels.com. Now the consent of the
shareholders in this context is solicited to move for obtaining approval of the SECP.

The directors have no direct or indirect interest in this agenda.
Item 6: Circulation of Annual Audited Accounts through CD/DVD/USB

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide SRO No. 470(1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016,
has allowed listed companies to circulate their Annual Audited Accounts (i.e. the annual balance sheet and
profit and loss account, auditor’s report and director’s report) to its members through CD/DVD/USB at their
registered addresses instead of sending them in hard copies, subject to approval obtained from shareholders
in General Meeting. Accordingly, approval is hereby sought from members of the Company to comply with the
requirements of said SRO vide an ordinary resolution.

Subject to the approval of resolution in the AGM, the company will circulate its annual accounts in future
through CD/DVD/USB. However, members will have the right to request hard copies free of cost at their
registered addresses after submitting the Standard Request Form which shall be made available on Company
website. While members who wish to receive hard copies for all future annual audited accounts shall also
require to give their preference in writing.

Furthermore, in terms of SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 08, 2014, the company will continue to provide
Annual Audited Accounts through email to those members who shall opt this mode. Any changes to such
arrangements should be communicated to the company on standard request form.

The directors have no direct or indirect interest in this agenda.

Item 7: Provisions and requirements of E-Voting as per Companies (E-Voting) Regulations, 2016

Shareholders have the right to be part of the decision making-process of their company to the extent provided
by the law. Electronic voting facility will help shareholders in different locations to take part in the decision-
making process of the company.

The SECP has allowed e-voting as per the Companies (E-Voting) Regulations, 2016 whereby certain
amendments are necessitated in the Articles of Association of the Companies. The Board shall appoint eligible
intermediary for e-voting and the intermediary will provide the details of execution officer to the company before
issuance of notice of General Meeting. Members will be informed through a notice of General Meeting and can
exercise their right to vote through e-voting by giving their consent in writing.

The amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company are being sought by way of passing Special
Resolutions, in order to give effect to the Companies (E-Voting) Regulations, 2016.

The existing and amended Articles of Association have been placed at the Registered Office of the Company
for inspection by the members during business hours.

No Director has any direct or indirect interest in the aforesaid special business.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of your Company take pleasure in presenting their report together with the Company's 32 audited
annual financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016.

GLOBAL AND LOCAL ECONOMIC SCENARIO

Global economy

The financial year 2015-2016 was a year of improbability and high volatility both for the global and domestic
markets alike. The global economy registered a modest growth of 3% during the financial year 2015-16. Middle-
East, Brazil, Japan and sub-Saharan Africa all fell short of expectations due to sharp fall in oil prices, decline
in commodity prices, weak exports, lower domestic demand, sharp drop in private consumption and decline in
foreign investments. The continued geopolitical and domestic conflicts also did not help many countries around
the globe to sustain or grow.

Global steel

Like other commaodities, international steel prices continued to decline in 2015-2016 due to a struggling global
economy and oversupply across the value chain. Although global demand remained sluggish, developing
economies demand for building infrastructure remained strong. The crisis hit steel industry in Britain is
confident of recovery after the voters have decided for BREXIT from European Union. The results of various
reforms China has taken for its steel industry are yet to be seen.

Pakistan economy

Pakistan’s economy grew by 4.7% in FY 16 according to the third quarter report of State Bank of Pakistan as
compared to 4% last year. The major internal factors that helped economy grew were low inflation, better fiscal
management, low interest rates, stable exchange rates, consistent inflow of foreign remittances, improved
security situation especially that of Karachi, and increased spending in Public Sector Development Program.
The major external factor has been the continued low prices of key oil and raw material in global markets.

Pakistan Steel Sector

The private sector of steel industry grew by 6% in FY16. Within the steel sector, long- products performed
specially well because of the booming construction activities driven by the infrastructure development including
mega projects like dams requiring high consumption of steel rebars to roads and bridges. The retail and
corporate sectors of the country also showed a growing demand of steel rebars. Some of the major companies
in the cement sector have announced cumulative capacity expansion of around 10 million tons over the next
few years keeping in view the growing needs of the country. The overall performance of the local steel
manufacturing sector is commendable despite stiff competition it faced from cheap imported steel.

PERFORMANCE OF AMRELI STEELS LIMITED

Operational

In the financial year 2015-2016, your Company made revenue of Rs.12.40 billion as compared to Rs. 14.41 billion
in the last financial year. The drop in revenue was attributable 57% and 43% drop in quantity and price respectively
of Amreli rebars. The decline in sales quantity was due to the dumping of cheap imported bars which created
confusion in the minds of buyers who shied away from taking exposure on rebars. On the other hand drop in sales
price was a function of complementing drop in raw material price. Despite the overall revenue drop your company
registered the highest ever after tax profit of Rs.1.27 billion witnessing a growth in after tax profit of 26.46% over and
above last financial year. The prime reasons for increase in profits during the year under review compared to last
year were significant decrease in raw material import prices and a substantial reduction of Rs. 332 million in financial
costs. A major portion of sale quantity loss (Amreli rebars) was made up by providing imported goods to the
customers that your company purchased from local traders.

Both the plants producing quality billets at Dhabeji and quality re-bars at SITE are running smoothly and operated
at a capacity of 84.43% and 82.77% respectively and are expected to increase in the financial year 2016 - 2017.
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A comparison of the key financial indicators of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2016 with
corresponding year is as under;

.................. Rupees in thousands.................
Sales revenue 12,400,191 14,413,661
Gross profit 2,791,955 2,493,485
Operating profit 2,084,729 1,939,568
Profit before tax 1,749,195 1,271,837
Profit after tax 1,278,749 1,011,183

DILUTED AND BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Diluted and basic EPS of the Company stands at Rs.4.81 in the financial year 2015-2016 up from Rs.4.54 in

the last financial year.

STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDITION BY THE COMPANY

Particulars

FY 2016

FY 2015

Source of funds

Revenue from sales
Revenue from other income
Less: Bought in material and services

12,400,191,349
15,398,750
(8,064,296,950)

14,413,661,405

34,794,055
(10,746,152,899)

Value added by the Company 4,351,293,149 3,702,302,561

Applied to
Employees Salaries and benefits 395,820,353 341,587,710
Government noome Li’;yzagzsotti’;rsxc'se duty, | 4 994,369,138 1,389,119,002
Providers of Capital Mark-up 335,534,389 667,730,309
Replacement of assets Depreciation 346,820,241 292,681,719
Shareholders Dividend 594,022,854 -
Company Retained profits 684,726,174 1,011,183,731
4,351,293,149 3,702,302,561

SAP INITIATIVE

The management took the initiative of implementing SAP across the company to integrate business functions
such as Finance, Costing, Procurement, Sales and distribution, Logistics, Production and Human Resource
Management. This was the first financial year where all the transactions were recorded in SAP and the legacy
system was abandoned completely. As the data is being populated and learning curve is increasing with each
passing day the management will have access to key performance indicators at the click of a button. This will
allow data-driven decision making and incorporation of best practices throughout the organization.
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HR INITIATIVES

During the year under review your Company conducted an 'Employee Engagement Survey' through a
professional consulting firm to further improve its strategy for Human Capital Management. The survey
revolved around eight key drivers which keep employees engaged 1.) Organizational pride 2.) Leadership
effectiveness 3.) Work satisfaction 4.) Performance & rewards 5.) Learning & growth 6.) Communication &
transparency 7.) Team work & collaboration and 8.) Work environment. The overall results of the Survey were
very encouraging and demonstrated that a great majority of employees at all level are generally happy and
extremely loyal to Amreli Steels & its management. However, some gaps in employees engagement and
expectations were identified which are being addressed on priority.

A “Salary Survey” of comparator companies was also conducted with the objective of aligning total rewards
with the business strategy by attracting, motivating, and retaining employees and in the process creating a
rewards program that reflects the culture and goals of the organization, and the costs of providing benefits to
employees with appropriate return on investment for rewards expenditure.

The Human Resources Steering Committee of management and the Human Resource & Remuneration
Committee of the Board in conjunction with senior management made a detailed evaluation of the findings of
the two reports and using market intelligence, raised the compensation packages of all management
employees based on merit, internal equity and bring the overall compensation package close to the market.
The effects of this raise in payroll will be seen in the financial year 2016-2017, and beyond.

The Management of your Company is keen to ensure that HR-force remain fully engaged and satisfied in their
jobs and perform to the best of their abilities to enable the company to achieve the benchmark target in most
efficient manner, a win-win situation for all stake holders.

INTERNAL AUDIT INITIATIVE

The Board of Directors of Amreli Steels Limited is committed to the principles of good Corporate Governance.
In order to accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes, the Board has outsourced the
internal audit function to M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably qualified
and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company.

The Board expects that this act will ensure that the Company is managed and supervised responsibly and
proper internal controls and risk management policy and procedures are in place for efficient and effective
operations of the Company. This is turn will check safeguarding of assets, compliance with laws and regulations
and proper financial reporting in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING - BOOK BUILDING AND RETAIL OFFER TO GERNERAL PUBLIC

The raising of funds to meet its capital requirement through IPO was a great success story for your company.
The investors from secondary market reposed great confidence on your Company by subscribing to its fresh
equity offer of 74,252,857 new shares at a rate of PKR 51 per share. The fresh issue of Rs.3,786,895,707 was
made through the Book Building process at a Strike Price of PKR 51 per share (including a premium of PKR
41 per share) whereby 74.75% of the total issue size i.e. 55,502,857 ordinary shares were issued through the
Book Building process to eligible Investors. The balance 25.25% of the total issue size i.e. 18,750,000 ordinary
shares were issued to the general public through the retail offer at the strike price determined through the Book
Building process.
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STATUS OF CAPACITY ENHANCMENT AT DHABEJI

The rolling mill and steel melt shop expansion initiative your Company took last year is progressing well in
time. Detailed designing of equipment with general arrangement drawings and loading for civil foundation and
utility requirements have been completed. The Company is well on track to accomplish these tasks as per
plan. Status of the activities being carried on the Dhabeji Project (as charted in the prospectus) is given as
under —

| Expected Date of Activity
Completion EStatus as on 30 June 2016

| (As per Prospectus)

Acquisition of land Already acquired
Contrgct finalization with equipment July 2015
supplier
i alizati i i Completed and reported to the
I;S)yzﬁigtriggallzatlon of equipment with September 2015 Pakistan Stock Exchange and
i " he Securities and Exchange
Opening of LCs for the import of 9
chhingries P September 2015 Commission of Pakistan.
Basic calculations of mill operating December 2015
parameters and equipment design
Detail designing of equipment with
general arrangement of drawing and :
loading for civil foundation and utility April 2016
requirements

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The global economy is expected to grow at approximately 3.2% in 2016 whereas economy of Pakistan is
expected to grow at 5% according to the estimates of International Monetary Fund. Due to weak demand
commodity, crude steel, oil and iron ore are likely to remain under pressure including meltable scrap required
by the steel sector. The World Steel association forecasts a decline of 0.8% in the global steel demand.

Pakistan’s economy is the 25" largest economy in the world according to Purchasing Power Parity and is
rapidly growing. Pakistan is in the next eleven countries that have a high potential to become one of the world’s
largest economies in the 21st century. In 2016, Business Monitor International (BMI) Research report named
Pakistan as one of the ten emerging economies with a particular focus on its manufacturing hub.

The “China Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC)” which has kicked off last year with power plants, dams,
airports and highway projects in the pipeline. These projects will require steel that is of the highest quality and
steel manufacturers to deliver in bulk. Collectively, the CPEC projects estimated at US $ 46 billion will require
millions of tons of steel and its completion is expected to generate much-needed economic stimulus. CPEC
being significant per cent of Pakistan’s GDP and promises to help policymakers shift gears from stabilization
to growth.

With increasing urbanization that is leading to an increased need of housing and other amenities, the World
Bank has reported a shortage of 9 million housing units in Pakistan. The construction sector is gearing up to
bridge this gap over the next 8-10 years. Housing schemes and commercial high rises will drive steel demand
over the next decade.

Pakistan is likely to witness increased demand mainly due to the focus of the Government on infrastructural
projects, which will in-turn increase demand for steel. Furthermore, an improved business environment will
lead to increased steel consumption, which will be beneficial for the Company.

With production Capacity of 200,000 metric tons and 180,000 metric tons per year, the Company’s Steel Melt
Shop and Rolling Mill respectively, are already one of the largest steel billets and re-bars producing facilities
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in Pakistan. And with expansion of at least 300,000 metric tons of rebars and 150,000 tons of billets your
company will certainly be the largest producer of steel rebars and billets ready to narrow the gap between
supply and demand of quality steel in the country and take maximum benefit of the opportunity.

VOTE OF THANKS TO MR. MIRZA QAMAR BEG

The Board put on record words of special thanks for Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg for his commitment in building a
strong Board and a prosperous Company. It was under his stewardship as a member of the Audit Committee
and as a member of the Board that Amreli Steels as an organization has been characterized by innovative
ideas, strategic thinking and, most valuable, the shift in focus of management on efforts to further increase the
credibility and visibility of the organization to all stakeholders, specially in the fraternity of listed companies.
The energy and devotion of Mr. Beg to the role will be impossible to match, but he leaves Amreli a better
organization and on a strong footing for those who follow him.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The strategic direction is reviewed by the Board regularly and it sets overall objectives. In light of those
objectives, the Chief Executive sets annual plans and performance targets for business which are reviewed in
total by the Board. The Board is dedicated to maintain high standard of good corporate governance. The

Company confirms compliance with the provisions set out by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan and accordingly amended Listing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Following are the Statements on Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework:

(a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of affairs fairly,
the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

(b) Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

(c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

(d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
of financial statements.

(e) The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
(f) There are no doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as going concern.

(g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed in the
Listing Regulations.

MEETINGS OF THE DIRECTORS

During the year, six (6) Board of Directors’ meetings, ten (10) Audit Committee meetings and six (6) Human
Resource & Remuneration (HR&R) Committee meetings were held.

Attendance by each director was as follows:

. Board Of Directors Audit Committee HR & R Committee
Name Of Director Attendance Attendance Attendance
Mr. Badar Kazmi 2/6 3/10 1/6
Mr. Abbas Akberali 5/6 Not applicable Not applicable
Mr. Shayan Akberali 5/6 Not applicable 4/6
Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji 5/6 Not applicable 6/6
Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg 6/6 9/10 Not applicable
Ms. Kinza Shayan 6/6 10/10 Not applicable
Ms. Mariam Akberali 4/6 Not applicable 4/6
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Leave was granted to the members of the Board who were unable to attend the meetings of Board of Directors
and/or Committees to the Board.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING PROGRAM

The orientation courses for directors as and when needed to apprise them of their duties and responsibilities
are arranged by the Board. The incoming directors were provided with appropriate briefing and orientation
material to enable them first-hand knowledge on the operations of the Company.

Five directors of the Company have attended the directors’training program conducted by the Pakistan Institute
of Corporate Governance and the remaining two directors will acquire the required directors’ training within the
time specified in the CCG.

EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Company has an un-approved and unfunded defined gratuity scheme for all permanent employees who
have completed the minimum qualifying year of service for entitlement of gratuity. The provision for gratuity is
made in accordance with the independent actuarial valuation. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as
of 30 June 2016 using Projected Unit Credit method.

THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors of the Company is committed to the principles of good Corporate Governance. The
stakeholders expect that the Company is managed and supervised responsibly and proper internal controls
and risk management policy and procedures are in place for efficient and effective operations of the Company,
safeguarding of assets, compliance with laws and regulations and proper financial reporting in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATIONS

Based on these results, the Board announced a final cash dividend of Rs.2.00 per share (i.e. 20%) for the year
ended 30 June 2016.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

The Company contributed Rs.1.733 billion towards the National Exchequer on account of various government
levies, taxes and import duties in the year under review. Payment of these taxes is 1.355 times more than the
net profit after tax of the Company and up by 41% as against last year which shows Company's positive attitude
towards economic development as a good responsible corporate citizen.

AUDITORS

The present auditors, Messrs. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants are retiring at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting and offer themselves for reappointment. The Board has endorsed the re-
appointment of Messrs. EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants as auditors of the Company for the year
ending 30 June 2017.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The Pattern of shareholdings as at 30 June 2016 is enclosed with the directors’ report.

The Directors, executives and their spouse and minor children have made no transactions of the Company's
shares during the year.

Executives mean Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary and
other executives (as defined by the Board).
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CODE OF CONDUCT

The Code of Conduct of the Company defines what we stand for and believe in, documenting the
uncompromisingly high ethical standards our Company has upheld since its foundation. Strong business ethics
forms the basis for all of our relationships with employees, customers, competitors, suppliers and colleagues.
It is a fundamental policy of the Company to conduct its business with honesty, integrity and in accordance
with the highest ethical and legal standards.

The Code is reviewed annually and any changes therein are approved by the Board. The Code is
communicated at all levels in the Organization fairly and with no exception and is available on the Company's
website. The responsibility for day to day implementation and monitoring of Code is delegated to the senior
management.

OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA

Operating and financial data and key ratios of the Company for the last six years are annexed.

COMMUNICATION

Communication with the shareholders is given a high priority. Annual, half yearly and quarterly reports are
distributed to them within the time specified in the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The Company also has a web
site, www.amrelisteels.com, which contains up to date information on Company's activities, financial reports
and notices / announcements (if any).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board expresses its gratitude to all the shareholders for their confidence and support. We would like to
thank all stakeholders, including financial institutions, who have been associated with us, for their support and
cooperation and we assure all stakeholders of our commitment to look after their respective interests. We
would like to thank the management and employees for their sincere contributions and their tireless efforts in
driving the Company on the path of growth.

Since the Chairman and Chief Executive is for the time being not in Pakistan, therefore, the Directors’ Report has been
signed by two Directors of the Company as authorized by the Board.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

—‘?\_ryﬁgﬁlﬁ[ g_i.]ﬁﬁﬂ

Zafar Ahmed Taji Shayan Akberali
Director Director

Date: September 09, 2016
Place: Karachi
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CODE OF CONDUCT

Introduction

The Code of Conduct of the Company defines what we stand for and believe in, documenting the uncompromisingly
high ethical standards our Company has upheld since its foundation.

Strong business ethics should form the basis for all of our relationships with employees, customers, competitors,
suppliers and colleagues. It is a fundamental policy of the Company to conduct its business with honesty, integrity
and in accordance with the highest ethical and legal standards.

Here we clearly state our business principles and show their impact on everyone involved with the company; from
the Board, management and employees, to the consumers, suppliers and business partners. These principles
highlight our responsibility to:

» maintain and help the Company in maintaining highest degree of Corporate Governance practices;

» conduct our business activities with the highest principles of honesty, integrity, truthfulness and honor;

» conduct all business activities strictly on an arm’s length business basis;

» promote ethical business practices;

» respect the environment and communities in which we operate;

» assure equal employment opportunities;

» value diversity in the workplace;

» provide healthy and safe working environments;

» respect human rights and trade ethically;

» act in utmost good faith and exercise due care, diligence and integrity in performing the office duties;

» comply both in letter and in spirit with all applicable laws and regulations;

» ensure that all business transactions are recorded in true, fair and timely fashion in accordance with the
accounting and financial reporting standards, as applicable to the Company;

» refrain from involvement in any other similar business which consumes their time, efforts and energy without
disclosure and approval of Company’s management;

» ensure that company personnel protect the Company’s assets and properties including physical assets,
information and intellectual rights and not use the same for their personal gain;

» maintain confidentiality of information entrusted by the Company or acquired during performance of their
duties and shall not use it for personal gain or advantage;

» avoid providing any information either formally or informally, to the press or any other publicity media or any
other person whosoever, unless specifically authorized;

» avoid utilization of bribery or corruption in conducting the Company’s business;

» avoid receiving any gift, payments or favor in whatsoever form from Company's business associates, which
can be perceived as being given to gain favor or dealing with the Company and shall ensure that the
Company's interests are never compromised;

» ensure that Company personnel abide by all job descriptions, contracts, agreements, terms of reference,
standard operating procedures, and directives duly approved and enforced by the Company

Applicability

The Code applies to the following (collectively termed as “Company Personnel” for the purposes of this Code):
» Members of the Board of Directors
» Senior Management Personnel
» All employees of the Company

Compliance with laws, rules and regulations

The Company and its personnel are bound by the law. Compliance with all applicable laws and regulations must
never be compromised. Additionally Company personnel shall adhere to internal rules and regulations as they apply
in a given situation. Those internal rules are specific to the Company and may go beyond what is required by the
law.

35 Annual Report 2016




{ AMRELI STEELS LIMITED |

Consequences of Non-Compliance of Code

Any breach of the Code, Terms of Appointment, Company’s polices, Rules and Regulations or any acts of
misconduct and fraud or embezzlement will be viewed seriously and may invite disciplinary action, including the
termination of employment and criminal prosecution, if required. For the said purpose, all Company’s polices and
rules will also be deemed to be an integral part of this Code.

Conflicts of Interest:

The Company expects that all personnel will perform their duties conscientiously, honestly, and in accordance with
the best interests of the Company. The Company personnel must not use their positions or the knowledge gained
as a result of their positions for private or personal advantage.

Regardless of the circumstances, if directors/employees sense that a course of action they have pursued, or are
presently pursuing, or are contemplating pursuing may involve them in a conflict of interest with their employer, they
should immediately communicate all the facts to their supervisor or to the Board as the case may be.

Company Policies

The Company maintains specific policies applicable to its personnel. All Company personnel must become and
remain familiar with all applicable Company policies and abide by them as they may change from time to time, which
will also be communicated by HR department accordingly.

Work Environment

The policy of the company is to provide a working environment free of discrimination and harassment in which
individuals are accorded equality of employment opportunity based upon merit and ability.

Discriminatory practices based on race, sex, color, national or ethnic origin, religion, marital status, family status,
age or disability will not be tolerated.

It is not a discriminatory practice to make a distinction between persons based on bona fide occupational
requirements. Since bona fide occupational requirements are narrowly defined, such distinctions should not be
undertaken without first obtaining express authorization from the relevant management level.

Communications and involvement

We have a long tradition of encouraging direct, two-way involvement of and communication with employees. This is
in order to obtain the fullest participation of everyone's energy and views and we believe is best promoted within the
local workplace through locally-based information and consultation procedures.

Conduct And Behavior Standards

All Company personnel are expected to contribute to the success of the Company by performing their responsibilities
as required and conducting themselves in a professional manner consistent with the Company’s business
philosophy, values and standards of business conduct. Employees’ honesty and integrity are essential to ethical
business practices.

Confidentiality

Confidential business information must not be shared with others outside the company or used for the personal gain
of oneself or others. Company personnel, their family and close acquaintances should not buy or sell company
shares if they have material information that has not been made public and could affect the share price.

We expect the company personnel to keep all information confidential. This might include plans to buy or sell
business, product formulation, manufacturing processes, advertising, marketing plans, concepts, research and
development, suppliers, customers, financial information, personnel and employment matters, and other information
which is not generally known to the public.
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Inside Information

The company personnel shall not use for their own financial gain or disclose for the use of others, inside information
obtained as a result of their position within the company.

The company personnel may find themselves in violation of the applicable securities laws if they misuse information
not generally known to the public and either trade or induce others to trade in the stock of the company or in the
stock of another company.

Specific confidential information would include financial information, information concerning acquisitions or
dispositions of properties and proposed acquisition or mergers with other companies.

In case of this breach of confidentiality the Company may be subjected to regulatory penalties and therefore, to
prevent and address such instances, it may consider disciplinary and legal recourse.

Political Activities

The Company neither supports political parties nor contributes to the funds of groups whose activities are calculated
to promote party interests. No contributions to a political candidate or public official with the funds or assets or in the
name of the Company are allowed, including direct or indirect contributions or payments made through third parties
such as suppliers or customers. The company personnel shall ensure their non-indulgence or any appearance for
any political activities.

Health And Safety

We recognize the importance of health and safety within our business. We seek to provide a healthy, safe and clean
working environment in line with local laws, regulations and industrial practice. We measure, appraise and report
performance, as part of our commitment to the health and safety of our employees, contractors and everyone who
works on or visits our sites.

We should take such steps as are reasonably practicable, to ensure that they meet our health and safety objectives.
These are -

> To provide and maintain safe and healthy working places and systems of work in order to protect all
company personnel and others, including visitors and the public, in so far as they come into contact with
foreseeable work hazards.

» To provide and maintain a safe and healthy working environment for all Company personnel, taking into
account individuals' needs and abilities.

» To develop safety awareness amongst all Company personnel to enable them to take reasonable care for
their own health and safety and of other people who may be affected by their acts or omissions.

Consumers

We are committed to providing consumers with high-quality, wholesome products which are marketed truthfully,
labeled clearly, and, as a minimum, meet domestic and global quality and safety regulations.

Suppliers

The Company is confident that its suppliers desire to operate in an environment that is free from influence due to
unethical business practices. Therefore, suppliers are expected to conduct business in a manner that would not, in
any way, compromise the ethical principles adopted by the Company. To ensure this, the Company may convey its
ethics requirements to its suppliers directly and also hold trainings and orientations for this purpose.

Competition and Trade Practice Standards

We are committed to free and open competition. We compete in market vigorously, but in an honest manner. Our
efforts in the marketplace shall be conducted in a fair and ethical manner in strict compliance with applicable
competition and trade practice laws and regulations.

Under no circumstances shall any company personnel be a party to any collusion or concerted effort of any type
involving any competitor vendor, supplier, customer or other party, which is in restraint of trade or violation of laws
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and regulations designed to foster competition. Because laws relating to competition are complex, company
personnel should refer matters about what they are in doubt to their superior or should seek the advice of the
company’s counsel or the Board, if so dictated by the significance of the uncertainty.

Company Personnel

It is the obligation of every employee to be a responsible employee; that is, to be honest, trustworthy, conscientious,
and dedicated to the highest standards of ethical business practices. The company personnel have a legal, moral
and ethical responsibility to report to the Company, or the appropriate authorities, any known or suspected violations
of law, regulations, or corporate policy.

The company personnel representing the Company to third parties shall not allow themselves to be placed in a
position in which an actual or apparent conflict of interest exists. Such conflict of interest may arise, or appear to
arise, by reason of the employees ' acceptance of gratuities, favors or other valuable benefits which could improperly
influence or reasonably be interpreted as improperly influencing sound business decisions.

Integrity and Professionalism

The Company personnel should remember that they are a reflection on the Company and are constantly being
judged or otherwise appraised by everyone they come in contact with. All Company Personnel should conduct
themselves with the highest degree of integrity and professionalism in the workplace or any other location while on
Company business.

Personal Conduct

The company personnel shall be careful while dealing with personal or business associates and not disclose, divulge
or provide any information regarding the company to anyone except where the same is used as a part of his/ her
official obligations and as required for official purpose and shall abide by the Closed period announced by the
company from time to time and also sign a Non- Disclosure Agreement if the need arises.

All company personnel should avoid any kind of bribery, extortion and all other forms of corruption.

The company personnel should always be cognizant of the need to adhere strictly to all safety policies and
regulations.

Any legally prohibited or controlled substances if found in the possession of any company personnel will be
confiscated and where appropriate, turned over to the authorities.

Accounting Records, Controls & Statements

All books, records, accounts and statements should conform to generally accepted and applicable accounting
principles and to all applicable laws and regulations and should be maintained accurately.

Company personnel are expected to sign only documents or records which they believe to be accurate and truthful.

Employees are responsible for the proper use, protection and maintaining of company assets including intellectual
property (e.g. patents, trademarks and designs). Company assets may only be used in relation to the Company’s
business.

Community Activities

We recognize our responsibilities as a member of the communities in which we operate and commit resources to
support community and social investment through national or locally targeted programs in partnership with others.
We will also encourage and support employee efforts to be involved in and provide leadership in the educational and
social fabric of the communities in which they live.
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Protection of the Environment

The company personnel shall treat the protection of the environment as an integral factor in all decision making.
The company is committed to the protection of the environment. To comply with this commitment, the company’s
policy is to meet or exceed all applicable governmental requirements. Employees must report to their superior all
circumstances in which toxic substances are spilled or released into the environment.

Violations of environmental laws, even if unintentional, can carry severe penalties, and could result in the prosecution
of the company or the employees involved or both. Failure to comply with the company’s instructions for the
protection of the environment may result in disciplinary actions.

Miscellaneous

All company personnel are required to comply with this code of conduct and are personally responsible for doing so.
The company personnel must comply with any rules set out in this code of conduct. Breach of any principle within
the code may result in disciplinary action and a serious breach — such as if any employee is found to be in wanton
abuse of the code and their action cause reputational risk or damage or financial loss to the business — may amount
to gross misconduct which may result in summary dismissal. Further, the company reserves the right to seek redress
and damages from such individuals.

Endorsement

As required by the Listing Regulations, every person to whom this Code applies shall endorse the Code of the
Company. The Company's reputation and its actions as a legal entity depend on the conduct of the company
personnel. Accordingly, each employee must commit to act according to the highest ethical standards and to know
and abide by applicable laws. The Code will be enforced at all levels in the Organization fairly and with no exception.
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

FINANCIAL POSITION

(GERSEICL)]
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Assets Employed =000 e Rs. in Million

Property, plant and equipment 5,403 7,926 7,779 7,566 7,504 8,442
Intangible Assets 1 1 1 0 24 27
Long term investments 1 1 - 15 15 15
Long-term loan to related party - - - - - -
Long term deposit 110 210 218 133 130 131
Current assets 1,728 2,734 3,803 3,411 4,589 8,150
Total Assets 7,243 10,873 11,800 11,126 12,262 16,765
Financed By
Shareholders' Equity 2,265 2,363 2,544 2,879 3,952 8,861
Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets 975 2,141 2,065 1,960 1,919 1,830
Long-term liabilities
Long term finance 1,942 2,020 1,584 2,049 1,150 525
Current portion of long term finance 147 334 493 550 952 484
2,089 2,354 2,077 2,599 2,102 1,008
Non-current and deferred liabilites 209 1,134 1,050 932 1,005 1,212
Current liabilities 1,851 3,215 4,557 3,308 4,236 4,339
Current portion of long term finance (147) (334) (493) (550) (952) (484)
1,704 2,881 4,063 2,757 3,284 3,856
Total Funds Invested 7,243 10,873 11,800 11,126 12,262 16,765
OPERATION AT GLANCE
Turnover 5,432 7,209 10,622 11,965 14,414 12,400
Gross Profit 473 981 1,161 1,376 2,493 2,792
Operating Profit 326 732 841 1,041 2,039 2,250
EBITDA 393 949 1,133 1,307 2,233 2,437
Profit before tax 62 130 174 380 1,272 1,749
Profit after tax 2 90 121 252 1,011 1,279
Total Comprehensive Income 2 90 105 263 1,003 1,288
Capital Expenditures (addition during the year) 1,475 771 167 123 192 1,292
EPS 0.01 0.40 0.54 1.13 4.54 4.81
Cash Flow Summary
Net Cash from / (used in) Operating Activities 173 (297) (76) 1,727 1,089 (1,001)
Net Cash from / (used in) Investing Activities (1,424) (736) (189) (96) (206) (1,279)
Net Cash from / (used in) Financing Activities 1,153 1,053 306 (1,645) (867) 2,582
Incr(_ease / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash (98) 19 41 (14) 16 301
Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the Year 18 36 77 63 80 381
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Vertical Analysis- %

2011

2012

2013

(Re-Stated)
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2014 2015 2016

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital And Reserves

Audited

Audited

Audited

Audited Audited Audited

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up Share Capital 30.76%  20.49% 18.88%  20.02% 18.17% 17.72%
Un-appropriate profit 0.52% 1.24% 2.68% 5.85% 14.07% 35.13%
31.27%  21.73% 21.56%  25.88%  32.23%  52.85%
Surplus on revaluation of PPE 13.46%  19.69% 17.50%  17.61% 15.65% 10.91%
44.74%  41.42% 39.06%  43.49% 47.88%  63.76%
Non-Current Liabilities
Long term borrowings 26.81% 18.58% 13.42% 18.41% 9.38% 3.13%
Finance lease 0.56% 2.66% 1.55% 0.52% 0.00% 0.00%
Deferred Liabilities 0.25% 0.23% 0.34% 0.42% 0.55% 0.43%
Deferred Taxation 2.09% 7.54% 6.88% 7.41% 7.58% 6.80%
Other financial liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.13% 0.03% 0.06% 0.00%
29.70%  29.01% 22.33% 26.79%  17.58%  10.36%
Current Liabilities
Trade & other payables 8.98% 7.43% 6.52% 7.86% 8.07% 6.45%
Mark-up accrued 0.82% 0.79% 0.79% 0.89% 0.67% 0.29%
Short term borrowings 13.56% 17.42% 26.22% 15.58% 18.04% 16.26%
Current Portion of long term borrowings 2.03% 3.07% 4.18% 4.94% 7.76% 2.88%
Current Portion of finance lease 0.17% 0.86% 0.91% 0.46% 0.00% 0.00%
25.56%  29.57% 38.62%  29.73%  34.54%  25.88%
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant, equipment & other assets 74.60%  72.90% 65.92%  68.00% 61.20%  50.35%
Intangibles 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.00% 0.20% 0.16%
Long term investment 0.01% 0.01% 0.00% 0.14% 0.12% 0.09%
Long term deposits 1.52% 1.93% 1.84% 1.19% 1.06% 0.78%
76.15%  74.85% 67.77%  69.34%  62.58%  51.39%
Current Assets
Stores & Spares 2.70% 3.11% 3.35% 4.00% 4.12% 3.58%
Stock in trade 12.30% 15.19% 17.40%  14.07% 18.55%  26.30%
Trade debts 4.95% 3.49% 4.84% 8.36% 9.44% 12.35%
Loan, Advances, deposits and prepayments 1.98% 1.05% 1.14% 1.39% 1.11% 1.04%
Other receivables 0.30% 1.33% 3.38% 1.04% 2.72% 2.55%
Short-term investment 0.00% 0.00% 0.26% 0.00% 0.00% 1.79%
Tax refund due from government 1.38% 0.66% 1.19% 1.23% 0.83% 0.51%
Cash and bank balances 0.24% 0.33% 0.66% 0.57% 0.65% 0.48%
23.85%  25.15% 32.23% 30.66% 37.42%  48.61%
TOTAL ASSETS 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
BALANCE SHEET

Horizontal Analysis- %
2011 Vs 2012 Vs 2013 Vs 2014 Vs 2015 Vs 2016 Vs
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital And Reserves
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up

) 55.31% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 33.33%
Share Capital
Un-appropriate profit 115.50% 259.79% 133.81% 106.04% 164.75% 241.54%
56.04% 4.31% 7.66% 13.18% 37.28% 124.19%
Surplus on revaluation of PPE -1.82% 119.57% -3.54% -5.12% -2.08% -4.65%
32.53% 39.00% 2.34% 4.98% 21.34% 82.08%
Non-Current Liabilities
Long term borrowings 76.43% 4.02% -21.58% 29.33% -43.86% -54.40%
Finance lease -23.05% 615.31% -36.87% -67.97% -100.00% -
Deferred Liabilities 22.48% 41.90% 60.95% 14.26% 44.68% 7.47%
Deferred Taxation 0.68% 442 .57% -0.92% 1.45% 12.86% 22.53%
Other financial liability 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -81.38% 178.58% -100.00%
63.24% 46.61% -16.47% 13.13% -27.69% -19.44%
Current Liabilities
Trade & other payables 540.21% 24.11% -4.72% 13.68% 13.14% 9.25%
Mark-up accrued 27.65% 43.44% 9.01% 6.12% -16.56% -41.70%
Short term borrowings -29.09% 92.89% 63.31% -43.98% 27.62% 23.27%
gc‘)’rrrfv'\‘litnzzrt'on of long term 22.30%  127.05% 47.77% 11.50% 73.07% -49.21%
f;:gg”t Portion of finance 10.79%  683.64% 13.78%  -52.51%  -100.00% -
3.45% 73.66% 41.72% -27.41% 28.07% 2.43%
I&g}h-ﬁ%g”v AND 30.45% 50.12% 8.53% -5.71% 10.21% 36.72%
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
F foparty, plant, equipmant & 39.92% 46.70% 1.86% -2.73% -0.82% 12.49%
Intangibles 0.00% 6.04% -30.96% -44.70% 5955.97% 9.85%
Long term investment 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Long term deposits 1161.23% 90.45% 3.55% -38.88% -2.35% 1.21%
42.47% 47.56% -1.74% -3.53% -0.54% 12.27%
Current Assets
Stores & Spares 98.99% 72.63% 17.15% 12.44% 13.57% 18.74%
Stock in trade 17.33% 85.36% 24.37% -23.77% 45.32% 93.86%
Trade debts 9.92% 5.70% 50.72% 62.69% 24.53% 78.79%
Loan, Advances, deposits and -28.42%  20.75% 18.72% 14.22% -11.70% 28.19%
prepayments
Other receivables -71.15% 568.96% 175.23% -70.84% 186.94% 28.35%
Short-term investment 0.00% 0.00% 100.00% -100.00% - -
Tax refund due from 29.67% -28.26% 96.20% -2.13% -26.35% -14.76%
government
Cash and bank balances -84.77% 106.77% 113.63% -18.07% 25.61% 1.76%
2.76% 58.28% 39.08% -10.30% 34.51% 77.62%
TOTAL ASSETS 30.45% 50.12% 8.53% -5.71% 10.21% 36.72%
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PROFIT AND LOSS

Vertical Analysis- %

Turnover — net

Cost of sales

Gross Profit

Trading income

Distribution cost
Administrative cost

Other operating income
Operating Profit

Finance cost

Other charges

Profit/(loss) before taxation
Taxation

Profit/(loss) after taxation
Other Comprehensive income
Total Comprehensive Income

Horizontal Analysis- %

SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

Jun-11  Jun-12 Jun -13
(Re-stated)

Audited Audited Audited
100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
-91.30% -86.39% -89.07%
8.70% 13.61% 10.93%
0.03% 0.01% 0.01%
-0.99% -1.52% -1.60%
-2.08% -2.14% -1.45%
0.34% 0.19% 0.02%
6.01% 10.16% 7.92%
-4.72% -8.17% -6.14%
-0.15% -0.18% -0.15%
1.14% 1.81% 1.63%
-1.10% -0.56% -0.49%
0.04% 1.25% 1.14%
0.00% 0.00% -0.15%
0.04% 1.25% 0.99%

Jun -14

Audited
100.00%
-88.50%
11.50%
0.00%
-1.62%
-1.34%
0.17%
8.70%
-5.28%
-0.25%
3.18%
-1.07%
2.11%
0.09%
2.20%

Jun -15

Audited
100.00%
-82.70%
17.30%
0.00%
-1.95%
-1.44%
0.24%
14.15%
-4.63%
-0.69%
8.82%
-1.81%
7.02%
-0.06%
6.96%
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Jun -16

Audited
100.00%
-77.48%
22.52%
0.00%
-2.75%
-1.74%
0.12%
18.14%
-2.71%
-1.33%
14.11%
-3.79%
10.31%
0.07%
10.39%

2011 Vs 2012 Vs PITER'E 2014Vs 2015Vs 2016 Vs
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Turnover — net 32.38% 32.72% 47.34% 12.65%  20.46%  -13.97%
Cost of sales 33.90% 25.59% 51.90% 11.94%  12.56%  -19.40%
Gross Profit 18.23%  107.58% 18.39% 18.44%  81.26% 11.97%
Trading income -8.34% -39.04% 25.68% -100.00% - -
Distribution cost 24.71%  103.26% 55.17% 14.55%  44.62% 21.47%
Administrative cost 15.51% 36.82% -0.34% 4.05%  30.03% 3.91%
Other operating income -55.56% -25.23% -84.70% 845.95%  72.28% -55.75%
Operating Profit 7.78%  124.40% 14.90% 23.78%  95.79% 10.33%
Finance cost -15.61%  129.71% 10.73% -3.20% 5.75%  -49.75%
Other charges -64.88% 58.64% 20.78% 93.42% 230.40% 65.73%
Profit/(loss) before taxation -354.48% 111.02% 33.18% 118.90% 234.75% 37.53%
Taxation -146.60% -32.56% 30.16% 143.30% 104.37% 80.49%
Profit/(loss) after taxation -98.03% 4305.72% 34.53% 108.34% 300.62% 26.46%
Other Comprehensive income 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% -164.34% -182.16% -207.07%
Total Comprehensive Income -98.03% 4305.72% 16.82% 149.68% 281.77% 28.42%
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

CASH FLOW

Vertical Analysis-%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
(Re-Stated)

Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Net Cash generated from /

: ted from / 178%  -1588% 185% -12342%  6702%  -332%
(used in) Operating Activities

Net Cash generated from / 1458%  -3933% 459%  688% -1266%  -424%
(used in) Investing Activities

Net Cash generated from / 1181%  5621% 743% 11754% -5336%  857%
(used in) Financing Activities

Increase / (Decrease) in Cash 100%  100% 100%  100%  100%  100%

and Cash Equivalents

Horizontal Analysis-%

2011 Vs 2012 Vs 2013Vs 2014Vs 2015Vs 2016 Vs
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Net Cash generated from /
(used in) Operating Activities
Net Cash generated from /

-133% -272% -74% -2371% -37% -192%

: : om 524%  -48% -74% -49% 14%  522%
(used in) Investing Activities
Net Cash generated from / 21% -9% 1% -637% 47%  -398%
(used in) Financing Activities
Increase / (Decrease) in Cash 114%  -119% 120%  -184%  -216%  1755%

and Cash Equivalents
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
FINANCIAL RATIOS

UoM 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Profitability Ratios
Gross Profit ratio Percentage 8.70 13.61 10.93 11.50 17.30 22.52
Net profit to sales ratio Percentage 0.04 1.25 0.99 2.20 6.96 10.39
Return on Equity Percentage 0.09 4 4 9 25 15
Return on Capital employed Percentage 0.06 2 2 6 20 18
Operating Leverage Percentage 43 385 31 178 449 -54
EBITDA margin to sales Percentage 7.2 13.2 10.7 11 15 20
Liquidity Ratios
Current Ratio Times 093:1 0.85:1 083:1 1.03:1 1.08 : 1 1.88:1
Quick / Acid test Ratio Times 0.45:1 0.34:1 0.38:1 0.56:1 055:1 0.86:1
Cash to current liability Times 0.01:1 0.01 :1 0.02:1 0.02:1 0.02:1 0.09:1
ggg;ﬂow from Operations to Times 003:1 -0.04:1 -001:1 014:1 008:1 -0.08:1
Activity / Turnover Ratios
Inventory turnover Times 6 5 5 6 6 3
No. of days in Inventory Days 61 74 71 62 59 127
Debtor turnover Times 16 20 22 16 14 8
No. of days in Receivables Days 23 19 16 23 26 48
Creditor turnover Times 121 61 81 128 149 92
No. of days in Payables Days 3 6 4 3 2 4
Operating Cycle Days 81 87 83 82 83 171
Total Asset Turnover Times 1 1 1 1 1 1
Fixed Asset Turnover Times 1 1 1 2 2 1
Investment / Market Ratios
Earning per Share Rupees 0.01 0.40 0.54 1.13 4.54 4.81
Break value per share with SOR Rupees 14.55 20.22 20.69 21.72 26.36 35.99
gggk value per share without Rupees 1017 10.61 11.42 1292 1774  29.83
Capital Structure Ratios
Debt / Equity Ratio Times 0.86 : 1 0.85:1 062:1 0.71:1 029:1 0.06:1
Weighted Average Cost of Debt Percentage 8 12 11 11 13 7
Financial Leverage Ratio Times 0.92:1 1.00 :1 082:1 090:1 0.53:1 0.11:1
Debt Service Ratio Times 1.01:1 1.27 :1 1.05:1 1.06:1 1.76 : 1 1.89:1
Interest Cover Times 1.24 1.22 1.27 1.60 2.90 6.21
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Graphical Presentation
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NON CURRENT ASSETS & NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

9,000 1 o
8,138 7,997

8’000 - - — 25 7,674
7,000 T

6,000 1 5515

oo}

o

5,000 - 77 NC Assets

4,000 2 15a 5 080 @ NC Liabilities
3,000 - 2658

2,151 2,155
2,000 A
1,000 A

Rs in Millions

1,736

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

APPLICATION OF REVENUE FY 2015-16

10%
4%

% B Cost of sales
B Admin & Distribution cost
¥ Finance cost
[l Other Charges less other income
M Taxation

7%

& Net Income

DISTRIBUTION OF MANUFACTURING COST

-10.2% 62.3%
1.9%
2.8%
3.8%
6.6%

32.9%

1
3%

5%

Raw Material

Fuel, Power & water
Store and Spares
Deprecition

Salaries and Wages

Others manufacturing cost

Change in W.I.P
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CURRENT RATIO & QUICK RATIO
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CAPACITY UTILIZATION

RE-BARS
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

<Having Shares—>

NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS From To SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE
220 1 100 7,694 0.0026
11,379 101 500 5,659,901 1.9056
3,059 501 1,000 3,042,248 1.0243
2,397 1,001 5,000 5,741,332 1.933
354 5,001 10,000 2,763,164 0.9303
97 10,001 15,000 1,253,381 0.422
95 15,001 20,000 1,760,639 0.5928
59 20,001 25,000 1,372,651 0.4622
24 25,001 30,000 682,170 0.2297
7 30,001 35,000 242,500 0.0816
15 35,001 40,000 567,967 0.1912
5 40,001 45,000 215,523 0.0726
18 45,001 50,000 892,000 0.3003
11 50,001 55,000 584,560 0.1968
4 55,001 60,000 235,000 0.0791
3 60,001 65,000 195,000 0.0657
12 65,001 70,000 818,274 0.2755
4 70,001 75,000 300,000 0.101
4 75,001 80,000 313,400 0.1055
2 80,001 85,000 170,000 0.0572
2 85,001 90,000 180,000 0.0606
3 90,001 95,000 280,600 0.0945
7 95,001 100,000 697,000 0.2347
1 100,001 105,000 101,002 0.034
3 105,001 110,000 327,500 0.1103
3 110,001 115,000 336,350 0.1132
1 115,001 120,000 116,000 0.0391
1 120,001 125,000 123,000 0.0414
2 125,001 130,000 257,000 0.0865
2 150,001 155,000 305,900 0.103
3 160,001 165,000 486,500 0.1638
1 165,001 170,000 166,333 0.056
1 170,001 175,000 175,000 0.0589
1 180,001 185,000 181,500 0.0611
2 185,001 190,000 374,679 0.1262
1 190,001 195,000 191,620 0.0645
1 195,001 200,000 200,000 0.0673
1 200,001 205,000 203,500 0.0685
1 240,001 245,000 244,000 0.0822
3 245,001 250,000 750,000 0.2525
1 250,001 255,000 250,500 0.0843
1 260,001 265,000 260,500 0.0877
2 265,001 270,000 533,000 0.1795
2 280,001 285,000 567,000 0.1909
1 290,001 295,000 291,000 0.098
1 300,001 305,000 301,000 0.1013
1 330,001 335,000 335,000 0.1128
1 360,001 365,000 362,976 0.1222
1 380,001 385,000 384,500 0.1295
1 390,001 395,000 394,166 0.1327
1 430,001 435,000 435,000 0.1465
2 445,001 450,000 896,000 0.3017
1 495,001 500,000 500,000 0.1683
3 515,001 520,000 1,555,500 0.5237
1 570,001 575,000 572,500 0.1928
1 575,001 580,000 580,000 0.1953
1 590,001 595,000 594,050 0.2
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<Having Shares~>

NO. OF SHAREHOLDERS From To SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE
1 610,001 615,000 611,000 0.2057
1 615,001 620,000 619,500 0.2086
1 620,001 625,000 625,000 0.2104
1 625,001 630,000 625,500 0.2106
1 695,001 700,000 700,000 0.2357
1 740,001 745,000 744,500 0.2507
1 820,001 825,000 825,000 0.2778
1 885,001 890,000 890,000 0.2997
1 930,001 935,000 932,000 0.3138
1 1,120,001 1,125,000 1,122,500 0.3779
1 1,140,001 1,145,000 1,144,759 0.3854
1 1,270,001 1,275,000 1,275,000 0.4293
1 1,370,001 1,375,000 1,375,000 0.4629
1 1,445,001 1,450,000 1,450,000 0.4882
1 1,630,001 1,635,000 1,634,000 0.5501
1 1,745,001 1,750,000 1,746,383 0.588
1 1,875,001 1,880,000 1,878,500 0.6325
1 1,925,001 1,930,000 1,929,000 0.6495
1 1,995,001 2,000,000 1,999,500 0.6732
1 2,195,001 2,200,000 2,199,974 0.7407
1 2,620,001 2,625,000 2,622,000 0.8828
1 2,850,001 2,855,000 2,853,526 0.9607
1 5,735,001 5,740,000 5,739,500 1.9324
1 35,690,001 35,695,000 35,694,840 12.018
1 37,415,001 37,420,000 37,419,212 12.5986
1 55,730,001 55,735,000 55,732,930 18.7646
1 91,290,001 91,295,000 91,294,723 30.7378

17,858 Total 297,011,427 100
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Additional Information
As on June 30, 2016

Categories of Shareholders S”:rrgr?glzjgfrs Shares Held Percentage
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
Abbas Akberali 2 92,439,482 31.12
Shayan Akberali 1 35,694,840 12.02
Kinza Shayan 1 1,746,383 0.59
Mariam Akberali 2 37,420,212 12.60
Mirza Qamar Beg 1 1,000 0.00
Badar Kazmi 1 1,000 0.00
Zafar Ahmed Taji 1 500 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties
Mahvash Akberali 1 55,732,930 18.76
Executives 8 11,000 0.00
NIT & ICP 1 164,500 0.05
Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance companies,
insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds
Banks 14 15,541,500 5.24
Insurance Companies 3 313,272 0.10
| Mutual Funds 43 22,863,650 7.70
General Public
Local 17,516 31,130,336 10.48
Foreign 218 909,654 0.31
Modaraba 1 13,500 0.01
Others 44 3,027,668 1.02
Totals 17,858 297,011,427 100.00
Shareholders holding 5% or more Shares Held Percentage
Abbas Akberali 91,294,723 30.74
Mahvash Akbberali 55,732,930 18.76
Hadi Abbas Akberali 37,419,212 12.60
Shayan Akberali 35,694,840 12.02
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EY Ford Rhodes Tel: #9221 3565 0007-11
Chartered Accountants Fax: +922]1 3568 1965
Progressive Plaza, Beaumont Road ey khi@pkey.com

P.0O. Box 15541, Karachi 75530 Y. ooy ph

Building a better
waorking world Fiaklzinn

Review report to the members on statement of compliance with the code of
corporate governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of
Corporate Governance (the Code) prepared by the Board of Directors of Amreli Steels Limited (the Company)
for the year ended 30 June 2016 to comply with the requirements of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited where the Company is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code and
report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company
to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sulfficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls,
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee, place before the Board of Directors’ for their review and approval its related party transactions
distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm‘s length
transactions and transactions which are not executed at arm’s length price and recording proper justification
for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out any procedures to determine whether the
related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best
practices contained in the Code, as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2016.

_/57%/&\..——_

Chartered Accountants

Audit Engagement Partner: Khurram Jameel
Date: 09 September 2016

Place: Karachi
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the CCG) contained in
Regulation No. 5.19 of Listing Regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing
a framework of good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices
of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

1.

The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors
representing minority interests on its board of directors. At present the board includes:

Category Name of Directors
Independent Directors Mr. Zafar Ahmed Taji
Mr. Mirza Qamar Beg
Mr. Badar Kazmi

Executive Directors Mr. Abbas Akberali
Mr. Shayan Akberali
Non-Executive Directors Ms. Kinza Shayan

Ms. Mariam Akberali

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence under clause 5.19.1(b) of the CCG.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company.

All the resident directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has
defaulted in payment of any loan to a Banking Company, a Development Financial Institution,
or a Non-Banking Financial Institution or, being a broker of stock exchange, has been declared
as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

No casual vacancy occurred in the Board during the year under review.

The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a Vision/Mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they
were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief
Executive Officer, other executive and Non-executive directors, have been taken by the Board.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence, by a director elected
by the Board for this purpose and after the listing of the Company the Board met at least once in every
quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, along with the agenda and working papers, were circulated
at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of the meetings were appropriately recorded and
circulated.

The Company arranges orientations courses for its directors as and when needed to appraise them of their
duties and responsibilities. The incoming directors are also provided with appropriate briefing and
orientation material to enable them first hand knowledge on the working of the Company. Five directors of
the Company have attended the directors’ training program conducted by the Paksitan Institute of
Corporate Governance and the remaining two directors will acquire the required directors’ training within
the time specified in the CCG.
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10. The Board has approved the appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms & conditions of employment.

11. The Directors' Report for the year under review has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of
the CCG and fully describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

12. The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer before approval of the Board.

13. The directors, Chief Executive Officer and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company
other than that disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

14. The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the CCG.

15. The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of three members, all of whom are non-executive
directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an independent director who is not the Chairman of the Board.

16. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to the approval of the
interim and final results of the Company as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the Committee
have been formed and advised to the Committee for compliance.

17. The Board has formed a Human Resource & Remuneration Committee. It comprises of four members, of
whom three are non-executive directors and one is an executive director. The Chairman of the Committee
is an independent director.

18. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies
and procedures of the Company.

19. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating
under the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), that
they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the Company
and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with the International Federation of Accountants
(IFAC) guidelines on the Code of Ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Listing Regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

21. The 'closed period', prior to the announcement of interim/final results, and business decisions, which may
materially affect the market price of Company's securities, was determined and intimated to directors,
employees and Stock Exchange.

22. Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated amongst all market participants at once through
stock exchange.

23. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with.

Since the Chairman and Chief Executive is for the time being not in Pakistan, therefore the statement of compliance with
the code of corporate governance has been signed by two Directors of the Company as authorized by the Board.

4 .
%%‘J%C For & on behalf of Board of Directors gp - Ql_a%.ﬂ#

Zafar Ahmed Taji Shayan Akberali
Director Director

Date: September 09, 2016
Place: Karachi
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EY Ford Rhodes Tel: +9221 3565 0007-11
Chartered Accountants Fax: #9221 3568 1965
Progressive Plaza, Beaumont Roasd ey.khi@pk.eyv.com

P.0. Box 15541, Karachi 75530 ey.comy/pk

Building a better
working world Fahistan

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed balance sheet of Amreli Steels Limited (the Company) as at 30 June 2016 and
the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and
prepare and present the above said statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards and the
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the above said statements
are free of any material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the above said statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and
significant estimates made by management, as well as, evaluating the overall presentation of the above said
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and, after due verification, we
report that:

a) in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Ordinance, 1984;

b) in our opinion:

i) the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are
further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied, except for the changes as stated in note
4.1 to the accompanying financial statements, with which we concur;

i)  the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

iii) the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the year were in
accordance with the objects of the Company.

c) in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance
sheet, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof, conform with approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan, and give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner
so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2016
and of the profit, its comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended; and

d) in our opinion no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

ey Fr A —

Chartered Accountants

Audit Engagement Partner: Khurram Jameel
Date: 09 September 2016

Place: Karachi
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BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 30 JUNE 2016

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Long-term investments
Long-term deposits

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments
Other receivables
Short-term investments
Taxation — net
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term financing
Deferred taxation
Deferred liability
Other financial liabilities

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Interest / markup accrued
Short-term borrowings
Current portion of long-term financing

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note

© oo~N®

10
11
12
13
14
15

16

17

19
20
21

22
23
24
19

25

{ AMRELI STEELS LIMITED |

2016 2015
---------- (Rupees) ----------

8,441,597,274 7,504,204,035
26,742,912 24,345,354
15,289,370 15,289,370
131,404,376 129,836,820
8,615,033,932 7,673,675,579
599,892,883 505,225,542
4,410,123,514 2,274,851,694
2,070,501,848 1,158,043,407
125,635,829 87,459,799
48,886,841 48,682,824
427,987,469 333,461,363

300,000,000 -
86,246,015 101,179,328
81,124,343 79,722,352
8,150,398,742 4,588,626,309
16,765,432,674 12,262,301,888

2,970,114,270
5,890,507,263

2,227,585,700
1,724,698,161

8,860,621,533
1,829,580,914

3,952,283,861
1,918,871,901

524,524,754
1,139,415,427|
72,176,237

1,150,186,280
929,901,180
67,160,595
7,909,428

1,736,116,418

2,155,157,483

1,080,934,801
48,221,865
2,726,371,085

483,586,058

989,389,837
82,714,774
2,211,793,603
952,090,429

4,339,113,809

4,235,988,643

16,765,432,674

12,262,301,888

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Since the Chief Executive is for the time being not in Pakistan, therefore, these financial statements
have been signed by two Directors of the Company as required under section 241(2) of the

g@;}a«/ﬂ&

Shayan Akberali
Director

Companies Ordinance, 1984.

o

Zafar Ahmed Taji
Director
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

12,400,191,349
(9,608,236,222)

14,413,661,405
(11,920,176,143)

2,791,955,127

(341,325,913)
(216,283,236)
(165,014,968)

15,398,750

2,493,485,262

(281,000,981)
(208,145,312)
(99,565,140)
34,794,055

2,084,729,760

(335,534,389)

1,939,567,884

(667,730,310)

1,749,195,371

(470,446,343)

1,271,837,574

(260,653,843)

1,278,749,028

1,011,183,731

Note
Sales 26
Cost of sales 27
Gross profit
Distribution costs 28
Administrative expenses 29
Other expenses 30
Other income 31
Operating profit
Finance costs 32
Profit before taxation
Taxation 33
Net profit for the year
Earnings per share — basic and diluted 34

4.81

4.54

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Since the Chief Executive is for the time being not in Pakistan, therefore, these financial statements
have been signed by two Directors of the Company as required under section 241(2) of the

Companies Ordinance, 1984.

b

Zafar Ahmed Taji
Director

Shayan Akberali
Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

2016 2015

---------- (Rupees) =========-
Net profit for the year 1,278,749,028 1,011,183,731
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss
account
Gain / (loss) on cash flow hedge — net of tax 5,118,447 (3,396,745)
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit and
loss account
Actuarial gain / (loss) on gratuity fund — net of tax 3,908,718 (5,034,960)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,287,776,193 1,002,752,026

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Since the Chief Executive is for the time being not in Pakistan, therefore, these financial statements
have been signed by two Directors of the Company as required under section 241(2) of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984.

%_ﬁ”if%f gw

Zafar Ahmed Taji Shayan Akberali
Director Director
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

2016 2015
Note = —-meeee- (Rupees) ---------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 1,749,195,371 1,271,837,574
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 346,820,241 292,681,719
Amortization 5,338,396 738,064
Intangibles written off - 77,044
Stock in trade written off - 2,018,676
Sales tax refundable written off - 21,681,814
Liability no longer payable written back - (9,690,673)
Provision / (reversal) of provision for doubtful trade debts 7,914,839 (14,660,612)
Provision for gratuity 17,755,345 14,497,734
Loss / (gain) on disposal of operating assets 1,264,747 (3,359,111)
Finance costs 335,534,389 667,730,309
Finance income (14,291,983) (1,665,376)
700,335,974 970,049,588
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,449,531,345 2,241,887,162
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores and spares (94,667,340) (60,360,347)
Stock-in-trade (2,135,271,820) (711,440,626)
Trade debts (920,373,280) (213,475,013)
Loans and advances (38,176,030) (60,425,979)
Trade deposits and short-term prepayments (204,018) 78,468,106
Other receivables (94,526,106) (238,930,366)
(3,283,218,594) (1,206,164,225)
Increase in current liability:
Trade and other payables 88,700,238 180,736,302
Cash (used in) / generated from operations (744,987,011) 1,216,459,239
Income taxes paid (247,754,874) (129,052,950)
Gratuity paid (7,074,895) (1,273,047)
Long-term deposits — net (1,567,556) 3,121,053
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (1,001,384,336) 1,089,254,295
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Fixed capital expenditure (1,292,096,693) (191,659,645)
Acquisition of intangible assets (7,735,954) (24,757,990)
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 6,618,465 8,988,536
Finance income received 14,291,983 1,665,376
Net cash used in investing activities (1,278,922,199) (205,763,723)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of capital 3,531,270,492 -
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - (109,182,196)
Short-term borrowings — net 517,422,207 422,550,769
Long-term financing — net (1,094,165,896) (496,464,131)
Other financial liabilities (5,666,585) -
Finance costs paid (367,151,692) (684,142,492)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities 2,581,708,526 (867,238,050)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 301,401,991 16,252,522
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 79,722,352 63,469,830
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 35 381,124,343 79,722,352

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

%@%Jﬁ%@

g&}a@bﬁ‘ﬁi

Zafar Ahmed Taji
Director

Shayan Akberali

Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016
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Reserves
Issued, Capital
Subscribed Reserve Revenue Reserves )
and paid-up - - - Total equity
capital Share Cash flow | Actuarialgain | Unappropriated Total
premium hedge / (loss) on profit reserves
gratuity fund
Rup

Balance as at 30 June 2014 2,227,585,700 - (1,721,702) (5,215,359) 658,376,947 651,439,886 2,879,025,586
Net profit for the year - - - - 1,011,183,731| | 1,011,183,731 1,011,183,731
Other comprehensive loss - - (3,396,745) (5,034,960) - (8,431,705), (8,431,705)|
Total comprehensive income - - (3,396,745) (5,034,960) 1,011,183,731 1,002,752,026 1,002,752,026
Transferred to unappropriated
profit in respect of
incremental depreciation
during the year — net of tax - - - - 70,506,249 70,506,249 70,506,249
Balance as at 30 June 2015 2,227,585,700 - (5,118,447) (10,250,319) 1,740,066,927 1,724,698,161 3,952,283,861
Net profit for the year - - - - 1,278,749,028| | 1,278,749,028| 1,278,749,028
Other comprehensive income - - 5,118,447 3,908,718 - 9,027,165 9,027,165
Total comprehensive income - - 5,118,447 3,908,718 1,278,749,028 1,287,776,193 1,287,776,193
Issuance of shares 742,528,570| |3,044,367,138| - - - | |3,044,367,138 | 3,786,895,708
Share issue cost - |(255,625,216) - - - (255,625,216) (255,625,216),

742,528,570 2,788,741,922 - - - 2,788,741,922  3,531,270,492
Transferred to unappropriated
profit in respect of
- incremental depreciation - - - - 85,687,186 85,687,186 85,687,186

during the year — net of tax
- disposal of fixed assets - - - - 3,603,801 3,603,801 3,603,801
during the year — net of tax
- - - - 89,290,987 89,290,987 89,290,987

Balance as at 30 June 2016 _ 2,970,114,270 2,788,741,922 - (6,341,601) 3,108,106,942 5,890,507,263  8,860,621,533

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Since the Chief Executive is for the time being not in Pakistan, therefore, these financial statements
have been signed by two Directors of the Company as required under section 241(2) of the

Companies Ordinance, 1984.

%ﬁ%&gfﬁd@

Zafar Ahmed Taji
Director

Shayan Akberali

Director
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1

1.2

Amreli Steels Limited (the Company) was incorporated in 1984 under the Companies Ordinance,
1984 as a private limited company and converted into a public unquoted company in 2009. The
Company is engaged in manufacture and sale of steel bars and billets. The registered office of the
Company is situated at Plot No. A-18, S.I.T.E., Karachi.

During the year, the Company has made an Initial Public Offering (IPO) of
Rs. 3,786,895,708/- through issuance of 74,252,857 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each at a price of
Rs. 51/- per share including share premium of Rs. 41/- per share amounting to Rs. 3,044,367,138/-
. On 01 December 2015, the Pakistan Stock Exchange approved the Company’s application for
formal listing and quotation of shares.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financing
Auditing Standards issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants Pakistan (ICAP) as are notified under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance,
1984. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 shall

prevail.

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

3.1

3.2

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
certain classes of property, plant and equipment that have been measured at revalued amounts.

These financial statements are prepared in Pak Rupees, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

Standards adopted during the year

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent
with those of the previous financial year except that the Company has adopted the following
standards which became effective for the current year:

IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements

IFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

IFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

IAS 27 — Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
IAS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

The adoption of the above accounting standards did not have any effect on the financial
statements.

69

Annual Report 2016




{ AMRELI STEELS LIMITED |

4.2 Standards and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

The following standards and amendments with respect to the approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the
respective standard:

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on or

after)

IFRS 2 — Share-based Payments — Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payments Transactions (Amendments) 01 January 2018

IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of

Interests in Other Entities and IAS 28 Investment in Associates

— Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

(Amendment) 01 January 2016
IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in

Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

(Amendment) Not yet finalized

IFRS 11 — Joint Arrangements — Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in Joint

Operation (Amendment) 01 January 2016
IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements — Disclosure Initiative

(Amendment) 01 January 2016
IAS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Disclosure Initiative —

(Amendment) 01 January 2017
IAS 12 - Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

Unrealized losses (Amendments) 01 January 2017

IAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 intangible assets -
Clarification of Acceptable Method of Depreciation and

Amortization (Amendment) 01 January 2016
IAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment IAS 41 Agriculture - Agriculture:

Bearer Plants (Amendment) 01 January 2016
IAS 27 — Separate Financial Statements — Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements (Amendment) 01 January 2016

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the
Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards
have also been issued by the IASB in September 2014. Such improvements are generally effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2016. The Company expects that such
improvements to the standards will not have any material impact on the Company's financial
statements in the period of initial application.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP
for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning
on or after)

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 01 January 2018
IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts 01 January 2016
IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers 01 January 2018
IFRS 16 — Leases 01 January 2019
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4.3

4.4

4.5

Property, plant and equipment
Operating assets

These are stated at cost / revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and impairment except
for lease hold land which is stated at cost / revalued amount.

Depreciation is charged applying the reducing balance method, except for depreciation on plant
and machinery and cranes which is charged on a units of production method /straight line basis. In
respect of additions and disposals of assets, depreciation is charged from the month in which an
asset is available for use and continues depreciating it until it is derecognized i.e. up to the month
preceding the disposal, even if during that year that asset is idle.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred.
Major renewals and improvements which increase the asset’s remaining useful economic life or
performance beyond the current estimated levels are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any,
are retired.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year end.

Gains or losses on disposal of assets are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Capital work in process

These are stated at cost less impairment, and represent expenditures incurred and advances made
in respect of specific assets during the construction / erection year. These are transferred to specific
assets as and when assets are available for use.

Impairment

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be
recoverable. If such indication exists and where the carrying values exceed the estimated
recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable amounts.

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment net off deferred tax is credited
to “surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment” shown below equity in the balance
sheet.

Depreciation on assets which are revalued is determined with reference to the value assigned to
such assets on revaluation and depreciation charge for the year is taken to the profit and loss
account.

An amount equal to incremental depreciation for the year net of deferred tax is transferred from
“surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment account” to unappropriated profit through
“statement of changes in equity” to record realization of surplus to the extent of the incremental
depreciation charge for the year.

Intangibles
These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Amortisation is charged on straight line method. Amortisation on additions is charged in the month

in which an asset comes into operation while no amortisation is charged for the month in which the
asset is disposed of.
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4.6 Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of moving average cost and Net Realizable Value (NRV).
4.7 Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of NRV and cost determined as follows:

Raw materials First-In-First-Out (FIFO)

Work-in-process Cost of direct materials plus other attributable overheads

Finished goods Manufactured Cost of direct materials plus other attributable overheads
Trading First-In-First-Out (FIFO)

Stock-in-transit Invoice value plus other charges paid thereon up to the

balance sheet date

4.8 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are recognised at invoice amount less provision for any uncollectible amounts. Other
receivables are carried at cost less provision for impairment. Provision for impairment is based on
the management’s assessment of customers’ / parties’ outstanding balances and creditworthiness.
Trade debts and other receivables are classified as bad debts / receivables and are written-off
when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

4.9 Investments
Held-to-maturity

These represent financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities where
the Company has positive intent and ability to hold till maturity. These are recognised initially at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs. After initial measurement, these investments are
measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

410 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company designates derivative financial instruments as either fair value hedge or cash flow
hedge.

Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedge represents hedges of a highly probable forecast transaction. The effective portion
of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. Amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the profit and loss account in the year in which the hedged
item will affect profit and loss account.

4.11 Cash and cash equivalents

These are stated at cost and include bank balances and short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less and short-term finances.

412 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional /
contractual right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet
date.
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413 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the
Company.

414 Financial instruments

All financial assets and liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognised in case of assets, when the
contractual rights under the instrument are realized, expired or surrendered and in case of a liability,
when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on recognition and de-
recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in the profit and loss account for the
year in which it arises.

415 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the transaction and intends to
settle either on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

417 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized
as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year in
which they occur.

418 Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated into Pak Rupees at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at that date. Exchange differences are recognised in the profit and loss account.

419 Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an un-approved and unfunded defined gratuity scheme for all permanent
employees who have completed the minimum qualifying year of service for entitlement of gratuity.
The contributions to the scheme are made in accordance with the independent actuarial valuation.
The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as of 30 June 2016 using Projected Unit Credit
method.

4.20 ljarah contracts

Leases under Shariah compliant ljarah contracts, where significant portion of the risk and reward
of ownership is retained by the lessor, are classified as ljarah. Rentals under these arrangements
are charged to profit and loss account on straight line basis over the lease term.

4.21 Taxation
Current

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income in accordance with Income Tax Ordinance,
2001.
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Deferred

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method for all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and tax credits, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which such temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

4.22 Revenue recognition

Sales are recognised upon passage of title to the customers which generally coincides with physical
delivery.

Profit on bank deposits / term deposit receipts is recognised on time proportion basis.

Other revenues are accounted for on accrual basis.
5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in
which the estimate is revised and in any future years affected. In the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies, management has made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to
the financial statements:

Residual values and useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, depreciation method, useful life and
residual value used in the calculation of depreciation. Further, where applicable, an estimate of the
recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In making these
estimates, the Company uses the technical resources available with the Company. Any change in estimates
in future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment, with
corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

The Company reviews the appropriateness of the revaluation of certain assets periodically for the purpose
of ensuring that the carrying amount of the same does not differ materially from its fair value. In making this
assessment, the Company uses the technical resources available with the Company. Any change in
assessment in future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant and equipment,
with corresponding effect on revaluation surplus of property, plant and equipment.

Capitalisation of borrowings costs

The Company reviews the appropriateness of the borrowing costs capitalized to items of property, plant and
equipment at each year end. Any change in the judgment in future might affect the profit and loss account of
that year.

Provision for impairment of trade debts and other receivables

The Company assesses recoverability of its trade debts and other receivables at each year end for the
purpose of evaluating doubtful trade debts and other receivables keeping in view the aging analysis. Any
change in the estimate in future might affect the profit and loss account of that year.
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Staff retirement benefits

The cost of defined benefit plan is determined using actuarial valuation, which involves making assumptions
about discount rate, expected rate of return on assets and future salary increases.

Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position
cannot be derived from active markets, their fair value is determined using valuation techniques including the
discounted cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses and credits to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized or credits can be availed. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies
and capital expenditure planning. Any change in estimates in future years might affect the remaining amounts
of respective items of deferred taxation with a corresponding effect on the taxation charge.

2016 2015
6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Note @  =—=—-moem- (Rupees) ----------
Operating fixed assets 6.1 7,334,605,686  7,459,828,865
Capital work-in-progress 6.2 1,106,991,588 6,483,544
Stores held for capital expenditure 6.3 - 37,891,626
8,441,597,274 7,504,204,035
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6.1.1 The Company carries its leasehold land, buildings on leasehold land, and plant and
machinery on revalued amount. The latest revaluation was conducted on 30 June 2015.
Had there been no revaluation, the book value of leasehold land, buildings on leasehold
land and plant and machinery would have been Rs. 402.430 (2015: Rs. 403.207) million,
Rs. 665.654 (2015: Rs. 707.236) million and Rs. 3,540.394 (2015: Rs. 3,519.410) million
respectively and surplus on revaluation of fixed assets would have been lower by Rs.
2,659.863 (2015: Rs. 2,789.270) million.

6.1.2 During the year, a detailed physical verification exercise of fixed assets was carried out by
an independent firm of Chartered Accountants. Based on this exercise, the accounting
records were adjusted to bring it in line with this exercise. This has been accounted for
through internal transfers of certain fixed assets at book value.

6.1.3 During the year, the Company has reviewed the useful economic life of plant and
machinery and as a result, the rate of depreciation of plant and machinery (rolls at rolling
mills) has been changed from 33 years (straight line method) to units of production method
with effect from 01 July 2015. The revision has accounted for prospectively as a change
in accounting estimate. Had the change in estimate not been made, the depreciation
charge for the year would have been lower by Rs. 24,755,269/- and the book value of fixed
assets and profit before tax would have been higher by the same amount.

2016 2015
Note  -----e---- (Rupees) --===-=---
Depreciation charge for the year has

6.1.4 Dbeen allocated as under:

Cost of sales — production of bars 271 108,628,706 82,685,152
Cost of sales — production of billets 27.1.1 223,205,222 191,781,445
Distribution costs 28 4,781,636 5,715,288
Administrative expenses 29 10,204,677 12,499,834

346,820,241 292,681,719

6.1.5 The following operating fixed assets were disposed off during the year:

Partioulars Cost  Gipevaton  Bookvalue [ SRS, Gain/(loss) ool P parchaser
(Rupees)
Leasehold land 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 3,000,000 (3,000,000  Negotiation mzhi’r‘:r‘:]‘;ir¥ayyab
Vehicles
Suzuki Cultus 896,000 631,759 264,241 264,241 - Employee  Mr. Saghir Rashdi
Suzuki Cultus 375,000 - 375,000 375,000 - Employee Mr. Wasim Ahmed
Toyota Corrola 139,900 - 139,900 139,900 - Employee  Mr. Darayus Charna
Suzuki Mehran 110,108 - 110,108 110,108 - Employee  Mr. Asif Majeed
Toyota Corrola 217,738 3,629 214,109 217,738 3,629 Employee  Mr. Noman Sajjad
Suzuki Bolan 64,000 - 64,000 450,000 386,000 Negotiation  Naseer Autos
Toyota Corolla 188,900 12,593 176,307 176,307 - Employee ?:'ef-la':t:éa;::xed
Suzuki Liana 1,179,000 850,616 328,384 645,000 316,616|  Negotiation ~Mr. Amir Saeed
Toyota Corrola 144,400 - 144,400 1,144,400 1,000,000 Negotiation ~ Mr. Mukhtar Shah
Suzuki Mehran 61,200 - 61,200 76,771 15,571 Employee  Mr. Sohail Akhter
Iltems having book value up
to Rs. 50,000 103,000 97,437 5,563 19,000 13,437 Employee Various
3,479,246 1,596,034 1,883,212 3,618,465 1,735,253
2016 9,479,246 1,596,034 7,883,212 6,618,465  (1,264,747)
2015 11,992,707 6,363,282 5,629,425 8,988,536 3,359,111
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Opening Closing balance
balance Additions 2016 2015
(Rupees)
6.2  Capital work-in-
progress
Civil works 6,483,544 344,655,023 351,138,567 6,483,544
Plant and machinery - 755,853,021 755,853,021 -
6,483,544 1,100,508,044 1,106,991,588 6,483,544
2016 2015
Note  -----m--m- (Rupees) -----------
6.3 Stores held for capital expenditure
Opening balance 37,891,626 39,611,814
Additions during the year - 19,844,921
Transferred to operating assets (37,891,626) (21,565,109)
Closing balance - 37,891,626
7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer software
Net carrying value
Balance at the beginning of the year 24,345,354 402,472
Additions during the year 7,735,954 24,757,990
Amortisation for the year (5,338,396) (738,064)
Written off - (77,044)
Balance at the end of the year 26,742,912 24,345,354
Gross carrying value
Cost 32,493,941 25,160,462
Accumulated amortization (5,751,029) (738,064)
Written off - (77,044)
Balance at the end of the year 26,742,912 24 345,354
Years
Useful life 5 5
8. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS — held to maturity
Term Deposit Receipts
Islamic bank 8.1 14,289,370 14,289,370
Conventional bank 8.2 1,000,000 1,000,000
15,289,370 15,289,370

8.1

These are held with a Islamic bank as a lien for guarantee issued on behalf of the Company

and carry profit rates ranging from 6.20% to 7.10% (2015: 7.33% to 8.00%) per annum having

maturity upto 5 years

8.2

These carry profit rate of 6.22% (2015: 4%) per annum having maturity upto 5 years.
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2016 2015
Note @ = ===meeeeee (Rupees) =========-
9. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS
Margin against guarantees 31,313,336 30,413,336
Utilities 74,124,666 74,124,666
ljarah / Diminishing Musharika 23,847,374 24,028,723
Others 2,119,000 1,270,095
9.1 131,404,376 129,836,820
9.1 Represent interest free deposits.
10. STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw materials
In hand 995,409,479 1,125,101,250
In transit 387,211,408 107,277,278
1,382,620,887 1,232,378,528
Work-in-process 1,128,669,547 231,780,314
Finished goods
Manufactured 797,160,524 810,692,852
- Trading 1,101,672,556) -
1,898,833,080 810,692,852
4,410,123,514 2,274,851,694
11. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured
Considered good 2,070,501,848 1,158,043,407
Considered doubtful 38,037,910 30,123,071
2,108,539,758 1,188,166,478
Provision for doubtful debts 11.1 (38,037,910) (30,123,071)
2,070,501,848 1,158,043,407
11.1 Movement of provision for doubtful debts
Opening balance 30,123,071 46,138,435
Provision / (reversals) during the year
29 7,914,839 (14,660,612)
38,037,910 31,477,823
Written-off during the year - (1,354,752)
Closing balance 38,037,910 30,123,071
11.2 The ageing of trade debts is as follows:
Past due but not impaired
Neither past due 31-90 91-180 Over 180
Total nor impaired Days Days Days
(Rupees)
2016 2,070,501,848 1,157,591,100 695,962,825 156,543,205 60,404,718
2015 1,158,043,407 779,727,959 306,215,697 58,722,307 13,377,444

79

Annual Report 2016




Note

12. LOANS AND ADVANCES - unsecured, considered
good

Loans
Executives
Employees
12.1
Advances
Suppliers
Employees
12.2

{ AMRELI STEELS LIMITED |

2016 2015
---------- (Rupees) =====-=---
1,186,668 751,503
12,717,909 2,399,025
13,904,577 3,150,528
105,820,003 82,032,351
5,911,249 2,276,920
111,731,252 84,309,271
125,635,829 87,459,799

12.1 Represent interest free loans to employees in accordance with the Company policy.
These are recoverable in twelve equal monthly installments.

12.2 Represent interest free advances.

13. TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Deposits
Security deposits 28,437,208 23,025,000
Surety deposit 25.5 12,750,000 12,750,000
Margins against letters of credit 6,551,225 9,326,177
Margins against letters of guarantee 1,516,250
13.1 47,738,433 46,617,427
Prepayments 1,148,408 2,065,397
48,886,841 48,682,824
131 Represent interest free deposits.
14. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales tax refundable 426,893,472 333,202,992
Others 1,093,997 258,371
427,987,469 333,461,363
15. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS - held to maturity
Term Deposit Receipts — Islamic bank 300,000,000 -
15.1 These carry profit rate of 7.10% per annum having maturity in September 2016.
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2016 2015
Note W  -———-mm- (Rupees) ----------
16. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Bank balances
Islamic banks
Current accounts 8,709,040 5,370,269
Saving accounts 16.1 507,453 42,346
9,216,493 5,412,615
Conventional banks
Current accounts 41,557,360 57,969,123
Saving accounts 16.2 10,582,594 4,339,191
52,139,954 62,308,314
61,356,447 67,720,929
Cash in hand 19,767,896 12,001,423
81,124,343 79,722,352
16.1 These carry profit rates ranging from 3% to 4% (2015: 3% to 4%) per annum.
16.2 These carry interest rates ranging from 4% to 6% (2015: 4% to 8%) per annum.
17. SHARE CAPITAL
17.1  Authorized capital
Number of shares e (In Rupees)------
2016 2015 2016 2015
420,000,000 420,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 4,200,000,000 4,200,000,000
Cumulative preference shares of Rs.
80,000,000 80,000,000 10/-each 800,000,000 800,000,000
500,000,000 500,000,000 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000

17.2  Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each

263,883,930 189,631,073 Issued for cash 17.21 2,638,839,300 1,896,310,730
Issued for consideration
33,127,497 33,127,497 other than cash 331,274,970 331,274,970
297,011,427 222,758,570 2,970,114,270 2,227,585,700
17.21
189,631,073 189,631,073 Opening balance 1,896,310,730 1,896,310,730

74,252,857 -
263,883,930 189,631,073

Shares issued during the year 742,528,570 -

2,638,839,300 1,896,310,730
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18.

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT - net of deferred tax

Opening balance
Surplus for the year

Adjustment on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Transfer to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental
depreciation charged during the year

Related deferred tax liability

Opening balance
Surplus for the year

Disposal

Incremental depreciation charged during the year

Breakup of revaluation surplus net of deferred tax as at
30 June 2016 is as follows:

Leasehold land

Buildings on leasehold land
Plant and machinery

19. LONG-TERM FINANCING - secured

Islamic banks

Diminishing Musharika 19.1

Sukuk

{ AMRELI STEELS LIMITED |

2016 2015
---------- (Rupees) ----------
2,789,269,810  2,849,957,563
- 44,545,456
(5,222,900) -

(124,184,328)

(105,233,209)

2,659,862,582  2,789,269,810
(870,397,909)  (890,424,869)
- (14,700,000)
1,619,099 -
38,497,142 34,726,960

(830,281,668)

(870,397,909)

1,829,580,914

1,918,871,901

325,670,383
211,583,174
1,292,327,357

329,274,183
236,852,269
1,352,745,449

1,829,580,914

1,918,871,901

Conventional banks

Term finance facilities 19.3
Foreign currency loan

Total

19.1

19.2

2016 2015
Long- Long-
Total Current Term Total Current Term
e (e ——— (Rupees) (Gl ——

313,369,137 104,052,725 209,316,412 601,039,144 150,238,275 450,800,869
19.2 167,200,000 167,200,000 - 501,600,000 334,400,000 167,200,000
480,569,137 271,252,725 209,316,412  1,102,639,144 484,638,275 618,000,869
527,541,676/| 212,333,333 315,208,342 835,307,567| 303,122,156 532,185,411
- - 4 164,329,998 164,329,998 E
527,541,676 212,333,333 315,208,342 999,637,565 467,452,154 532,185,411
1,008,110,813 483,586,058 524,524,754 2,102,276,709 952,090,429 1,150,186,280

Represent Diminishing Musharaka facilities obtained from Islamic banks. These facilities are
repayable in equal monthly / quarterly / semi-annual installments over a period of 4 years.
These carry markup rate of 6 months KIBOR + 1.75% to 6 months KIBOR + 2% per annum
(2015: 6 months KIBOR + 1.75% to 6 months KIBOR + 2% per annum). These facilities are
secured by first pari passu hypothecation charge on present and future fixed assets of the

Company.

Represent Sukuk Bonds issued by Islamic Banks. The units are to be purchased during a
period of 7 years’ time including 2 years grace period which is allowed from the date of first
drawn i.e. December 2009, 24% of the units will be purchased during the period of three years
starting after the expiry of grace period and the remaining units will be purchased in sixth and
seventh year in 8 equal quarterly installments. These carry profit rate of 3 months KIBOR +
2.5% per annum (2015: 3 months KIBOR + 2.5% per annum). These are secured by

Annual Report 2016

82




| AMRELI STEELS LIMITED |

proportionate and ownership through first pari passu charge on all the present and future
assets of the Company with 25% margin.

19.3 Represent term finance facilities obtained from commercial banks. These facilities are
repayable in 6 to 8 equal semi-annual installments latest by 2019. These carry mark-up rate
ranging from 6 months KIBOR + 1.75% to 6 months KIBOR + 2.65% per annum (2015: 6
months KIBOR + 1.75% to 6 months KIBOR + 2.65% per annum) payable semi-annually.
These facilities are secured by way of first equitable mortgage over land and building, first pari
passu charge on all present and future fixed assets of Company with 25% margin over the
facility amount and personal guarantees of all the directors of the Company.

20. DEFERRED TAXATION

2016 2015
Note ~  -=—----mm- (Rupees) ----------
Represents tax effects of temporary differences relating to:
Accelerated tax depreciation / amortization 804,280,952 918,372,091
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 830,281,668 870,397,909
Provisions (34,166,386) (32,103,607)
Others - (11,035,481)
Unused tax losses - (327,399,403)
Unused tax credits 20.1 (460,980,807)  (488,330,329)

1,139,415,427 929,901,180

20.1 Represents deferred tax recognised on minimum tax and alternative corporative tax, paid /
payable under sections 113 and 113C, respectively of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The
management, based on the opinion of its tax advisor, considers the same to be claimable.

21. DEFERRED LIABILITY

Staff gratuity 21.1 72,176,237 67,160,595
21.1  Amount recognised in balance sheet
Opening balance 67,160,595 46,421,041
Charge for the year 17,755,345 14,497,734
Recognised in other comprehensive income (5,664,808) 7,514,867
Benefits paid (7,074,895) (1,273,047)
Closing balance "72,176,237 67,160,595
21.2 Expense recognised in profit and loss
Current service cost 10,693,809 8,431,285
Past service cost 858,279 -
Interest cost 6,203,257 6,066,449
17,755,345 14,497,734
21.3 Historical information for defined benefit plans
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
(Rupees)
Present value of defined
benefit obligation 72,176,237 67,160,595 46,421,041 40,629,917 25,224,226
Experience adjustment on
plan liabilities (5,664,808) 7,514,867 (3,138,703) 9,286,508  (1,191,406)
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21.4  Principal actuarial assumptions
2016 2015
Expected rate of increase in salary level 6.25% 8.75%
Valuation discount rate 7.25% 9.75%
Average expected remaining working life of employees 8 years 8 years
2016 2015
Note ==ememeeeees (Rupees) -=-=====-==-
21.5 Charge for the year has been allocated as
follows:
Cost of sales — production of bars 27.1.2 3,225,370 3,274,183
Cost of sales — production of billets 27111 7,580,342 6,132,785
Distribution costs 28.1 2,133,572 1,802,225
Administrative expenses 29.1 4,816,061 3,288,541
17,755,345 14,497,734

21.6 Balance sheet date sensitivity analysis (+/- 100 bps) on present value of defined benefit

obligation
2016
Discount rate Salary increase
-100 bps + 100 bps -100 bps
---------------- (Rupees)-------=-==-------
Present value of defined benefit obligation 66,681,758 78,635,371 78,744,300 66,488,065
2016 2015
Note @~  ----—--- (Rupees) ------------
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 132,023,646 76,155,915
Murabaha 221 444,902,750 442,058,024
Accrued liabilities 217,546,437 113,230,506
Advances from customers 120,310,463 260,476,372
ljarah rentals payable 1,124,728 1,124,728
Workers’ Profits Participation Fund 22.2 94,109,268 68,174,227
Workers’ welfare fund 64,786,921 25,906,206
Withholding tax payable 6,130,588 2,263,859
1,080,934,801 989,389,837

22.1 Represent Murabaha facilities amounting to Rs. 1,900 (2015: Rs. 1,300) million obtained from
Islamic banks for purchase of raw material. These carry profit at the rates ranging from 6 months
KIBOR + 1.0% to 6 months KIBOR + 1.5% (2015: 6 months KIBOR + 1.5% to 6 months KIBOR
+ 1.75%) per annum. These are secured by way of pledge of raw materials.
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2016 2015
Note ==eeceeee- (Rupees) =========-=-
22.2 Workers’ Profits Participation Fund
Balance at the beginning of the year 68,174,227 20,406,229
Mark-up on funds utilized in the Company’s business 32 3,014,515 1,582,327
71,188,742 21,988,556
Allocation for the year 30 94,109,268 68,174,227
165,298,010 90,162,783
Paid during the year (71,188,742) (21,988,556)
94,109,268 68,174,227
23. INTEREST/MARK-UP ACCRUED
Islamic banks
Long-term financing 1,268,390 4,495,484
Short-term borrowings 20,708,049 17,540,245
21,976,439 22,035,729
Conventional banks
Long-term financing 11,737,912 21,184,795
Short-term borrowings 14,507,514 39,494,250
26,245,426 60,679,045
48,221,865 82,714,774
24. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS - secured
Islamic banks
Cash finance 241 500,080,000 150,112,125
Finance against trust receipts 24.2 372,865,752 155,074,379
872,945,752 305,186,504
Conventional banks
Cash finance 241 329,987,940 130,204,110
Finance against trust receipts 24.2 552,415,794 580,289,651
Running finance 24.3 771,021,599 253,529,569
Demand finance 24.4 200,000,000 199,909,676
Finance against import merchandise 742,674,093

1,853,425,333 1,906,607,099

24.5 2,726,371,085 2,211,793,603

241 Represent working capital facilities availed from various banks carrying markup ranging from 1
month KIBOR + 0.75% to 6 month KIBOR + 1.00% per annum (2015: 1 month KIBOR + 1.75% to
6 month KIBOR + 1.75% per annum). These facilities are secured by hypothecation charge over
fixed and current assets of the Company and by pledge over raw material.

24.2 Represent working capital facilities availed from various banks carrying markup ranging from 1
month KIBOR + 0.75% to 6 months KIBOR + 1.25% per annum (2015: 3 months KIBOR +1.25%
to 6 months KIBOR + 1.75% per annum). These facilities are secured by hypothecation charge
over fixed and current assets of the Company.

24.3 Represent working capital facility availed from various banks carrying markup ranges from 1 month
KIBOR + 0.75% to 3 month KIBOR + 1.50% per annum (2015: 1 month KIBOR + 1.50% to 3
months KIBOR + 1.75% per annum). These facilities are secured by hypothecation charge over
fixed and current assets of the Company.
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24.4

24.5

This carries markup at the rate of 1 month KIBOR + 1.25% per annum (2015: 1 month KIBOR
+ 1.50% per annum) payable on maturity. The facility is secured by charge over present and
future trade debts, mortgage charge over Company’s property and lien on TDR.

As of the balance sheet date, the Company has unutilized facilities for short term borrowings
amounting to Rs. 1,439.699 million (2015: Rs. 494.813 million) obtained from Islamic banks
and Rs. 2,866.804 million (2015: 1,897.961 million) obtained from Conventional banks.

25. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

25.1

25.2

25.3

25.4

During the year ended 30 June 2015, the Government of Pakistan promulgated Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 2015 and levied GIDC on gas bills at the rate of Rs.100 / MMBTU
on all industrial consumers. The GIDC Act, 2015 was made applicable with immediate effect
superseding the GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance, 2014. However, the Company filed a suit
before the Honourable High Court of Sindh (the Court), challenging the vires of GIDC Act, 2015
and seeking refund of the entire amount paid under GIDC Act, 2011. The Court passed an order
restraining the Sui Southern Gas Company Limited from demanding and collecting GIDC as levied
by the GIDC Act, 2015. The financial exposure of the Company upto 30 June 2016 is Rs.119.176
million. In view of the advice of legal counsel, the Company is confident of a favourable outcome
and accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements.

During the current year, the Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR), Large Taxpayers’ Unit
(LTU), Karachi passed an Order against the Company, concluding that the Company has violated
the provisions of Rule 58H of Chapter Xl of the Sales Tax Special Procedure Rules, 2007 and
raised an alleged demand of Rs.2,013.620 million for the tax periods July 2013 to December 2014.
The Company approached the Chief Automation and Sales Tax, Federal Board of Revenue (FBR),
Islamabad, who directed the Chief Commissioner Inland Revenue, LTU Karachi that no recovery
action shall be taken against the Company till the subject matter is decided by the Commissioner
Inland Revenue (Appeals) or until any other directive is issued by the FBR. The Company is
currently contesting the said Order at the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue. The management,
based on a legal advice, is confident that the eventual outcome will be in favor of the Company.
Accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in these financial statements.

During the current year, the DCIR, LTU issued another notice for alleged non-charging of further
tax on the supplies made to unregistered persons and raised an alleged demand of Rs.166.934
million for the tax periods July 2013 to June 2015. However, the Company filed a law suit in the
Court which issued an interim order restraining any coercive action to be taken against the
Company. The suit is currently pending adjudication. The management, based on a legal advice,
is confident that the eventual outcome will be in favor of the Company. Accordingly, no provision
has been made in this respect in these financial statements.

During the current year, the FBR issued Sales Tax General Order (STGO) No.18 of 2016, whereby
the existing procedure for payment and claiming input adjustment of sales tax was amended.
Before the said STGO, sales tax was being paid by the Company on the basis of Rule 58(H) of the
Sales Tax Special Procedures Rules, 2007 of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 read with STGO No0.01/2013.
The Company has filed a suit before the Court challenging STGO No.18 of 2016 restraining the
tax department to calculate the sales tax liability on the basis of the STGO and requesting
continuation of the existing procedure of payment and adjustment of input sales tax. The Court
granted stay against the said STGO with the direction that impugned STGO shall remain
suspended and the Company shall be entitled for claiming input adjustment of the sales tax on the
basis of existing STGO. The financial exposure of the Company upto 30 June 2016 is Rs.162.000
million. The management, based on a legal advice, is confident that the outcome will be in favor of
the Company. Accordingly, no provision has been made in these financial statements.
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25.5 As disclosed in note 13, the Company has paid surety deposit to Pakistan Steels Mills Corporation
(Private) Limited (PASMIC) in connection with case filed by the Federal Investigation Agency
against the Company alleging undue advantage taken by the Company under a scheme of
PASMIC. The Court vide its order dated 19 April 2010 has directed PASMIC to invest the money in
Government’s profit bearing securities on behalf of the Company. The management, based on legal
advice, is confident for a favorable outcome in this respect. Accordingly, no provision has been

made in this respect in these financial statements.

Commitments
25.6 Outstanding letters of credit — Islamic banks
Outstanding letters of credit — Conventional banks

Outstanding letters of guarantee — Islamic banks

Outstanding letters of guarantee — Conventional banks

2016 2015
---------- (Rupees) ----------
61,702,743 216,099,521
2,227,349,436 318,443,535
34,711,370 34,711,370
16,929,086 13,929,086

25.7 Commitments for rentals payable under ljarah contracts in respect of vehicles and plant and

machinery with Islamic banks are as follows:

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five years

26. SALES — net

Local

Manufactured goods
Trading stock

Less: sales tax
Trading stock

Less: trade discounts
Manufactured goods

Export sales

2016 2015
---------- (Rupees) ------—--
36,459,186 43,438,743
66,772,067 101,886,678

11,484,044,433
1,048,238,784

14,388,651,959

12,532,283,217

152,050,248

9,302,030

14,388,651,959

1,340,549

12,370,930,939
29,260,410

14,387,311,410
26,349,995

12,400,191,349

14,413,661,405
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Note = =——-mmeeeee- (Rupees) --=-=====---
27. COST OF SALES
Manufactured goods 271 8,833,327,109 11,920,176,143
Trading stock 27.2 774,909,113 -
9,608,236,222 11,920,176,143
27.1 Cost of sales — manufactured goods
Opening stock — work in progress 10 231,780,314 180,706,149
Cost of billets manufactured internally 2711 8,407,340,576 10,557,277,513
Purchases 381,709,754 420,021,238
Closing stock — work in progress 10 (1,128,669,547) (231,780,314)
7,892,161,097 10,926,224,586
Manufacturing overheads
Stores and spares consumed 112,701,698 55,923,886
Salaries, wages and other benefits 27.1.2 88,096,875 80,136,623
Fuel, power and water 538,733,962 555,965,859
Depreciation 6.1.4 108,628,706 82,685,152
ljarah rentals 23,955,943 20,214,269
Repairs and maintenance 51,732,782 56,295,694
Cartage 6,647,976 1,225,006
Insurance 3,612,040 3,047,827
Rent, rates and taxes 25,335 599,603
Others 3,690,033 2,018,676
937,825,350 858,112,595
Cost of goods manufactured 8,829,986,447 11,784,337,181
Cost of bars used for own use (10,191,666) -
8,819,794,781 11,784,337,181
Finished goods
Opening stock 10 810,692,852 946,531,814
Closing stock 10 (797,160,524) (810,692,852)
13,532,328 135,838,962
8,833,327,109 11,920,176,143
2016 2015
Note @~ = ==emeeeee- (Rupees) -=--=-----
2711 Cost of billets manufactured internally
Raw material consumed
Opening stock 10 1,125,101,250 318,275,969
Purchases 4,987,973,175 8,072,572,679
6,113,074,425 8,390,848,648
Closing stock 10 (995,409,479) (1,125,101,250)
5,117,664,946 7,265,747,398
Manufacturing overheads
Stores and spares consumed 472,826,897 525,547,803
Salaries, wages and other benefits 27111 154,907,814 138,003,604
Depreciation 6.1.4 223,205,222 191,781,445
Fuel and power 2,363,456,790 2,360,973,735
ljarah rentals 9,792,132 4,287,093
Cartage 31,496,693 23,221,375
Repairs and maintenance 4,735,088 22,129,149
Rent, rates and taxes 724,999 585,309
Insurance 4,902,574 2,982,643
Conveyance and travelling 12,134,685 11,588,909
Entertainment expenses 5,266,372 6,568,694
Vehicle running expense 3,714,974 2,561,948
Others 2,511,390 1,298,408
3,289,675,630 3,291,530,115
8,407,340,576 10,557,277,513
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271141

27.1.2

Includes Rs. 7.580 million (2015: Rs. 6.143 million) in respect of staff
retirement benefits.

Includes Rs. 3.225 million (2015: Rs. 3.191 million) in respect of staff
retirement benefits.

2016 2015
Note @ = —=meememeeee (Rupees) --=-==-=-=--
27.2 Cost of sales - trading
Purchases 1,890,198,053 -
Closing stock 10 (1,101,672,556) -
788,525,497 -
Cost of bars used for own use (13,616,384) -
774,909,113 -
2016 2015
Note @ = - (Rupees) ----------
28. DISTRIBUTION COSTS
Salaries, allowances and other benefits 28.1 45,758,979 34,149,027
Carriage and transport 222,490,271 170,599,596
Advertisement and sales promotion 32,792,051 26,964,235
Depreciation 6.1.4 4,781,636 5,715,288
Utilities 4,253,880 2,757,762
Bundling and special order charges 15,496,178 27,880,079
Rent, rates and taxes 5,746,304 1,119,700
Testing charges and others 10,006,614 11,815,294
341,325,913 281,000,981
28.1 Includes Rs. 2.134 million (2015: Rs. 1.802 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.
29. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, allowances and other benefits 29.1 107,056,685 89,298,456
Depreciation 6.1.4 10,204,677 12,499,834
Amortisation 5,338,396 738,064
Intangibles written off - 77,044
Travelling and conveyance 5,613,347 8,715,746
Legal and professional charges 27,697,136 18,697,488
Provision for doubtful debts 111 7,914,839 -
Sales tax refundable — written off - 21,681,814
Vehicles running expenses 5,073,199 7,895,718
Entertainment 3,651,780 2,774,174
Security guard expenses 10,424,833 12,247,398
Insurance 2,221,094 2,087,033
Computer consumables 12,275,714 6,810,775
Rent, rates and taxes 1,060,861 1,764,286
Communication charges 3,597,077 1,718,413
Printing and stationery 732,325 1,808,496
Utilities 3,503,500 2,256,351
Auditors’ remuneration 29.2 2,067,500 2,500,000
Repairs and maintenance 2,680,533 205,138
ljarah rentals 2,342,949 6,929,606
Others 2,826,791 7,439,478
216,283,236 208,145,312
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29.1 Includes Rs. 4.816 million (2015: Rs. 3.288 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

29.2  Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fee
Review of half yearly financial statements,
compliance with code of corporate
governance and other services
Out of pocket expenses

OTHER EXPENSES

Workers’ Profits Participation Fund

Workers’ Welfare Fund

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - net
Donations

30.1

2016 2015
---------- (Rupees) ---=------
1,350,000 1,250,000
480,000 1,250,000
237,500 -
2,067,500 2,500,000
94,109,268 68,174,227
38,880,715 25,906,206
1,264,747 -
30,760,238 5,484,707
165,014,968 99,565,140

Includes donation amounting to Rs. 22.500 million (2015: Nil) to Hunar Foundation, Karachi — a related
party. Mr. Abbas Akberali the Chief Executive of the Company is one of the founding members of the

Foundation

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Islamic banks

- Profit on saving accounts 7,055 9,802
- Profit on TDRs 11,367,179 1,227,848
11,374,234 1,237,650
Conventional banks
- Profit on saving accounts 392,565 389,260
- Profit on TDRs 2,525,184 38,466
2,917,749 427,726
14,291,983 1,665,376
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - net - 3,359,111
Reversal of provision of doubtful debts - 14,660,612
Scrap sales 1,106,767 418,283
Liability no longer payable-written back - 9,690,673
Recovery of bad debts - 5,000,000
1,106,767 33,128,679
15,398,750 34,794,055
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Note

32. FINANCE COSTS
Markup / interest

Islamic banks
Long-term financing
Short-term borrowings
Murabaha

Conventional banks
Long-term financing
Short-term borrowings
Finance lease

Interest on Worker’s Profit Participation Fund
Loss on cash flow hedge

Bank charges

Exchange loss

33. TAXATION
Current tax
for the year 33.1
for prior years

Deferred tax

33.1 The return of income for the tax year 2015 has been filed by the Company. The said return, as per
the provisions of Section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 has been deemed to be an

2016 2015
---------- (Rupees) ---=------
72,414,403 149,078,162
12,261,630 55,784,645
36,476,111 59,248,914
121,152,144 264,111,721
67,807,150 114,073,729
128,020,762 250,805,710
- 1,339,631
195,827,912 366,219,070
316,980,056 630,330,791
3,014,515 1,682,327
6,281,009 836,092
3,851,535 16,949,763
5,407,274 18,031,337
335,534,389 667,730,310
262,396,494 188,195,308
291,694 (22,933,934)
262,688,188 165,261,374
207,758,155 95,392,469
470,446,343 260,653,843

assessment order passed by the Commissioner of Inland Revenue.

33.2 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit

Accounting profit before taxation

Tax at applicable tax rate of 32%
Super tax

Tax effects of:

Prior year tax

Tax credits

Expenses that are admissible in determining taxable
income — net

Applying lower tax rates to certain income

Tax rate adjustment

2016
(Rupees)

1,749,195,371

559,742,519

54,358,805

614,101,324

291,694
(89,419,584)

(29,603,825)
(7,770,241)
(17,153,025)

470,446,343
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As the Company was subject to Alternative Corporate Tax (ACT) for the previous year, therefore, no numerical

tax reconciliation was prepared.

34. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net profit for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

1,278,749,028

1,011,183,731

Number of shares

of Rs. 10/- each 266,072,737 222,758,570
---------- (Rupees) ======----
Basic and diluted earnings per share 4.81 4.54
35. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Short-term investments 15 300,000,000 -
Cash and bank balances 16 81,124,343 79,722,352
381,124,343 79,722,352
36. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
2016
Chief
Executive Director Executives Total
(Rupees)
Managerial remuneration 4,626,000 2,865,000 41,221,268 48,712,268
Housing allowance 2,081,700 1,289,250 18,464,343 21,835,293
Utilities & conveyance 462,600 286,500 14,187,130 14,936,230
Medical 462,600 286,500 4,864,930 5,614,030
Bonus - - 3,037,579 3,037,579
Others 767,100 396,750 14,401,528 15,565,378
8,400,000 5,124,000 96,176,778 109,700,778
Number 1 1 41 43
2015
Chief
Executive Directors Executives Total
(Rupees)
Managerial remuneration 4,026,000 3,401,024 37,726,292 45,153,316
Housing allowance 1,811,700 1,527,234 16,945,362 20,284,296
Utilities & conveyance 402,600 339,691 12,704,716 13,447,007
Medical 402,600 515,878 4,611,026 5,529,504
Bonus - - 3,015,085 3,015,085
Others 785,100 1,127,423 10,951,951 12,864,474
7,428,000 6,911,250 85,954,432 100,293,682
Number 1 2 37 40
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36.1 In addition, the Chief Executive and Director are provided with free use of Company maintained
cars and club memberships with certain reimbursements pertaining to business purposes.

36.2  The aggregate amount paid to the five Non-Executive Directors as a fee for attending the meetings
is Rs.2,750,000 (2015: Nil).

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks i.e. market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized below:

37.1 Market risk

37.1.1 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in the market interest rates. The Company
interest rate risk arises from long-term financing, short-term borrowings, murabaha and
investments carrying floating rates. Change in benchmark interest rate by 1% may have a
positive or negative impact of approximately Rs.38.539 (2015: Rs.11.395) million in profit
and loss account before taxation. The analysis is made based on the assumption that all
other variables remain constant.

37.1.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or a financial liability will
fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates. It arises mainly where receivables
and payables exist as a result of transactions with foreign undertakings. As of the balance
sheet date, the Company is not exposed to any such risk.

37.1.3 Commodity risk

The Company purchases scrap on an ongoing basis, as its operating activities require a
continuous supply of raw material for the production. The Company has not hedged itself
from the variation in commodity prices through any forward contract and purchase
commitments but the management negotiates the price with the suppliers as part of its risk
management policy.

37.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail
to discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts
to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific
counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to
developments affecting a particular industry.

The Company seeks to minimize the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to
customers considered credit worthy and obtaining securities where applicable. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:
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2016 2015
---------- (Rupees) ----------
Investments 315,289,370 15,289,370
Trade debts 2,070,501,848 1,158,043,407
Loans and advances 125,635,829 87,459,799
Deposits 6,551,225 9,326,177
Other receivables 427,987,469 333,461,363
Bank balances 61,356,447 67,720,929

3,007,322,188 1,671,301,045

37.2.1 Credit quality of financial assets

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rates as
shown below:

2016 2015
--------------- (Rupees) ------=------
Trade debts
Customers with no defaults in the past one year 1,157,591,100 765,067,347
Customers with some defaults in past one year
which have been fully recovered - 14,660,612
1,157,591,100 779,727,959
Bank balances
Ratings
Al+ 31,826,535 39,875,192
A-1+ 6,597,163 18,094,274
A1l 11,209,532 4,642,680
A-1 9,884,532 2,509,789
A-2 1,838,685 2,598,994
61,356,447 67,720,929
Investments
Ratings
A-1+ 1,000,000 1,000,000
A1l 314,289,370 14,289,370
315,289,370 15,289,370
37.3 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with the financial instruments. To guard against the risk, the Company
has diversified funding sources and the assets are managed with liquidity in mind. The maturity
profile is monitored to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained.
Table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilites based on
contractual undiscounted payments:
On Less than 3to12 1to5
2016 Demand 3 months Months Years Total
(Rupees)
Long-term financing - 122,113,180 361,472,879 524,524,754 1,008,110,813
Trade and other payables 7,272,770 908,667,556 - - 915,940,326
Accrued mark-up - 40,928,378 7,293,487 - 48,221,865
Short-term borrowings - 2,109,384,019 616,987,066 - 2,726,371,085
7,272,770 3,181,093,133 985,753,432 524,524,754 4,698,644,089
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On Less than 3to12 1to5
2015 Demand 3 months Months Years Total
(Rupees)
Long-term financing - 213,626,494 738,463,935 1,150,186,280  2,102,276,709
Trade and other payables - 893,045,545 - - 893,045,545
Accrued mark-up - 77,802,556 4,912,217 - 82,714,773
Short-term borrowings - 1,821,654,714 390,138,889 - 2,211,793,603
Other financial liabilities - - 7,909,428 - 7,909,428
- 3,006,129,309 1,141,424,469 1,150,186,280 5,297,740,058

37.4

Capital risk management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maintain healthy capital
ratios, strong credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability
of finance for its existing and potential investment projects, to maximize shareholders value
and reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may

return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Gearing ratio

Long-term financing

2016

---------- (Rupees) -------—--

1,008,110,813

2,102,276,709

Other financial liabilities - 7,909,428
Trade and other payables 1,080,934,801 989,389,837
Accrued mark-up 48,221,865 82,714,774
Short-term borrowings 2,726,371,085 2,211,793,603
Total debt 4,863,638,564 5,394,084,351

Cash and cash equivalents

(381,124,342)

(79,722,352)

Net debt 4,482,514,222 5,314,361,999
Share capital 2,970,114,270 2,227,585,700
Reserves 5,890,507,263 1,724,698,161
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 1,829,580,914 1,918,871,901
Total equity 10,690,202,447 5,871,155,762

Equity and net debt

15,172,716,669

11,185,517,761

Gearing ratio
Including surplus on revaluation of property, plant and

equipment 30% 48%
Excluding surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment 34% 57%

The Company finances its expansion projects through equity, borrowings and management of its
working capital with a view to maintaining an appropriated mix between various sources of finance
to minimize risk.
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38.

37.5 Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transactions. The carrying values of all financial
assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties of the Company comprise Associates, directors and key management personnel.
Transactions and balances with related parties are disclosed in respective notes to the financial statements.

2016 2015
---------- (M.T.) ~—-——---
39. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION
39.1 Billets
Plant capacity — estimated 200,000 200,000
Actual production 168,852 173,738
39.2 Bars
Plant capacity — estimated 180,000 180,000
Actual production 148,988 169,411

40.

41.

42,

39.3 During the year, the capacity utilization at the two plants of the Company namely “Rolling Mill”

and “Steel Melt Shop” recorded a decrease from 94% to 83% and from 87% to 84% respectively.
The reason for lower capacity utilization is because of uncertainty in the market due to import of
re-bars.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Total number of employees at year end are 351 (2015: 317) and average number of employees during
the year were 347 (2015: 308).

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements were authorized for issue on September 09, 2016 by the Board of Directors
of the Company.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

421 The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 09, 2016 has recommended a final
cash dividend Rs. 2.00 per share @ 20% amounting to Rs.594,022,854 on the existing paid-
up value of the ordinary share capital for approval of shareholders in the Annual General
Meeting.
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42,2 The Finance Act, 2015 introduced a tax on every public company at the rate of 10% of such
undistributed reserves which exceeds the amount of its paid up capital. However, this tax shall
not be applied in case of a public company which distributes cash dividend equal to 40% of
its after tax profits or 50% of its paid up capital, whichever is less, within the prescribed time
after the end of the relevant tax year.

Based on the fact the Board of Directors of the Company has proposed 20% dividend for the
financial and tax year 2016 which exceeds the prescribed minimum dividend requirement as

aforesaid, the Company believes that it would not eventually be liable to pay tax on its
undistributed reserves as of 30 June 2016.

43. CORRESPONING FIGURES
There were no reclassifications that could affect the financial statement materially.
44. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee, unless otherwise stated.

Zafar Ahmed Taji Shayan Akberali
Director Director
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Investors’ Education

In pursuance of SRO 924(1)/2015 dated September 9th, 2015 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), the following informational message has been
reproduced to educate investors.

FY Jama
A Punii

[P Y IOV SE AP - f T Py

wasew, amapunjl. ok

Be aware, Be alert,

Be safe

Learn about investing at
www.jamapunji.pk

Key features:
03 Licensed Enlities Verification 4l Stock trading simulator

(based on live feed from KSE)
EE Knowledge center
B Risk profiler*

= Scam meter®

M Jamapunji games®
A ciecl shiclMor By Financial calculator

% Campany Verification Sub;criptic:-n io Alerts (event
[ Insurance & Investment Checklist notifications, corporate and
- ok e iiaaret regulatory actions)

@ Jamapuniji application for
mobile device

] Online Quizzes

n ol
& Jamia Punf s an nveshor Jamapunji pk @jamapunji_pk
1 % Educaton Indtiative of
& i  Secuips and Exchangs
i',i_‘-| .-";"-J' Cowrmimnizcn of Pakistan “Mobile apps am alen mnsitable Ior downioad o andrord] snd ids devioes
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Proxy Form
Amreli Steels Limit
32nd Annual General Meeting

L, S/O / D/O:

holder of CNIC No.

Resident of , being member of Amreli Steels Limited,
holding ordinary shares as per Registered Folio/ CDS Account No.

hereby appoint Mr. /Ms. , resident of

member of the Company Registered Folio / CDS Account No. or failing him/her
Mr./Ms. resident
of who is also a member of the
Company Registered Folio / CDS Account No. , as my / our proxy to attend, act

and vote for me/ us and on my / our behalf at the 32" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company
to be held on Tuesday, October 25, 2016 at 09:00 am PST at Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
(ICAP), Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton, Karachi and any adjournment thereof.

As witness my / our hand / seal this day of 2016.
Signed by in the presence
of;
Witness:
1. Name:
Signature
Address:

CNIC or Passport No.:

2. Name:

Signature

Address:

CNIC or Passport No.:

Note:
1. The proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company,
A-18, S.I.T.E. Karachi.
2. All members are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting.
3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by
a member with the company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid.
4. Members are requested to notify any changes in their addresses immediately.
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’ The Company Secretary ’
Amreli Steels Limited
A-18, S.I.T.E., Karachi, Pakistan AFFIX
UAN: 021-111-267-354 POSTAGE

’ Tel: 021-32587232-9
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